Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

PLANNING COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator
Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091

Tuesday, 28th April, 2015 at 7.30 pm Tel: 020-8379-1000
Venue: Rooms 2 & 3, Dugdale Centre, Ext: 4093 /4091

Thomas Hardy House, 39 London Road, Fax: 020-8379-4455
Enfield, Middlesex, EN2 6DS Textphone: 020 8379 4419

E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.qgov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

PLEASE NOTE VENUE ABOVE

MEMBERS

Councillors : Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana During,
Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy (Vice-Chair), Andy Milne, Anne-

Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair) and 1 Vacancy

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 27/04/15
AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the

agenda.

3. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 (Pages 1 -
4)

To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Thursday
12 March 2015.



10.

11.

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 MARCH 2015 (Pages 5 -
8)

To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday
24 March 2015.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 233) (Pages 9 - 10)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation.

5.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers. (A copy is available in
the Members’ Library.)

14-02634-FUL - 25 LANCASTER AVENUE, BARNET EN4 OEP (Pages 11 -
32)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to completion of S106 Agreement
and conditions
WARD: Cockfosters

15-00453-FUL - REAR OF 41-45 GORDON HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 0QS
(Pages 33 - 52)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Town

14-04772-HOU - 68 MEADWAY, N14 6NH (Pages 53 - 66)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Southgate

15-00588-HOU - 73 AVENUE ROAD, LONDON, N14 4DD (Pages 67 - 76)

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal
WARD: Cockfosters

15-01218-RE4 - FIRS FARM PLAYING FIELDS, FIRS LANE, LONDON N21
2PJ (Pages 77 - 88)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town
and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and subject to conditions
WARD: Bush Hill Park

APPEAL INFORMATION

Monthly decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals.
(The update will be provided at the meeting.)



12.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 12.3.2015

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON THURSDAY, 12 MARCH 2015

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana
During, Ahmet Hasan, Derek Levy, Andy Milne, Anne-Marie
Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon

ABSENT Jansev Jemal

OFFICERS: Bob Griffiths (Assistant Director - Planning, Highways &
Transportation), Andy Higham (Head of Development
Management), Sharon Davidson (Planning Decisions
Manager), David B Taylor (Transportation Planning), Izabella
Grogan (Legal Services) and Robert Singleton (Planning
Officer) Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 50 members of the public, applicant and agent
representatives, councillors and MP
Dennis Stacey, Chairman — Conservation Advisory Group

423
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

NOTED

1. Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed everyone in attendance and explained
the procedure and order of the meeting.

2. Councillor Chamberlain expressed concern about the acceptance of a late
deputation request. The Chair confirmed that this had been considered
with the Council’s Monitoring Officer and committee legal adviser and it
was agreed that was a proper decision for him to make.

3. Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jemal in view of her
disclosable pecuniary interest in the application.

424
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

NOTED that Councillor Pearce advised that she was a member of the Health
Scrutiny Standing Workstream and had been at meetings where the hospital
was discussed, but she would consider the application without prejudice.

425
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 4 FEBRUARY 2015

- 331 -



Page 2
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 12.3.2015

AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 4 February
2015 as a correct record.

NOTED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 27
January 2015 were signed by the Chair following completion of Minute 365.

426
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 198)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation.

427
14/04574/0OUT - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD,
EN2 6JL

NOTED

1. Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, highlighting the key
issues for Members’ consideration, and confirming that the application
had been the subject of extensive public consultation; a Planning Panel
was held on 7 January 2015, and a Member site visit on 24 January 2015.
The application had also been referred to the Greater London Authority.

2. An update on the S106 Agreement, that discussions were on-going and a
draft agreement had yet to be prepared. The report identified the key
issues that will be covered in the S106 Agreement. In addition, the
following items would need to be addressed:

a. Confirmation of land acquisition (school site)
b. School delivery

c. Junction works

d. Controlled crossing

e. Enhanced parking enforcement

f. Parking permit restrictions for future residents
g. Retention of Clock Tower block

3. Conditions were summarised in the report. Additional conditions would
also be required to cover:
a. Secured by Design
b. Details of sound insulation
c. Lifetime Homes
d. Condition survey and heritage statement (Clock Tower)
e. Demolition statement (Clock Tower)
f. Schedule of works (Clock Tower)
g. Detail of works (Clock Tower)
h. Retained features / works to make good (Clock Tower)
I. Minimum residential space standards
j. Reinstatement of Green Belt land

- 332 -



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 3
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 12.3.2015

The description of development to be amended to reflect the amendment
to the access to the school, which would be entered from Hunters Way,
rather than Shooters Road.

A revised plan had been received supporting the above change.

Receipt of 24 further representations: 15 in support of the application and
9 objecting, raising issues already identified.

The Further Alterations to the London Plan had now been adopted. The
policies contained therein had been considered as part of this application
and did not change the recommendation put forward.

The deputation of Mr David Flint of Enfield Green Party.
The deputation of Mr Dickie Smart, Ridge Crest resident.

The statement of Ms Joan Ryan, Labour Parliamentary Candidate for
Enfield North.

The statement of Councillor Glynis Vince, Highlands Ward Councillor.

The statement of Mr Nick de Bois MP, Member of Parliament for Enfield
North.

The responses of Mr David Sloman, Chief Executive of the Royal Free
London NHS Foundation Trust, and Mr Steve Powis, Medical Director of
the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust, on behalf of the applicant.

The statement of Mr Dennis Stacey on behalf of the Conservation
Advisory Group.

The Head of Traffic & Transportation’s responses to points raised
regarding highways issues.

Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers, noting:

a. A condition to be added to require an updated transport assessment 6
months after occupation of the development to monitor the traffic
generated by the development and the need for additional mitigations.

b. Investigation of the scope for increasing the level of affordable housing
if additional external funding could be secured and overall viability not
compromised.

c. Options to be considered for the retention of other buildings of interest
at the Ridgeway entrance to the site, and to ensure an appropriate setting
was retained for the Clock Tower building.

d. Reserved matters applications for substantive phases of development
would be reported to Planning Committee.

e. An informative to be attached to the decision notice addressing
particular issues raised at Committee.

- 333 -



Page 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 12.3.2015

17. Following a debate, the officers’ recommendation, including the additional
conditions, was unanimously approved.

AGREED that, subject to referral to the Greater London Authority, and the
completion of a S106 Agreement, the Head of Development Management /
Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to grant planning permission,
subject to the conditions set out in the report and additional conditions set out
above.

428
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING PANEL - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL SITE

RECEIVED the minutes of the Chase Farm Planning Panel held on 7 January
2015 appended to the officers’ report for information.

- 334 -



Page S Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 24.3.2015

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 24 MARCH 2015

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana
During, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy, Anne-Marie
Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon

ABSENT Andy Milne

OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Head of Development Management), Sharon
Davidson (Planning Decisions Manager), David B Taylor
(Transportation Planning) and Catriona McFarlane (Legal
Representative) Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 10 members of the public, applicant and agent
representatives
Councillor Dinah Barry, Winchmore Hill Ward Councillor
Dennis Stacey, Chairman — Conservation Advisory Group

451
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed all attendees and explained the order of
the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Andy Milne.

452
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

453
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 FEBRUARY 2015

AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 24
February 2015 as a correct record.

454
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 200)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation (Report No. 200).

455
14/03322/FUL - 2A FARM ROAD, LONDON, N21 3JA

- 358 -



Page 6

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 24.3.2015

NOTED

1.

The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, highlighting the
differences between the current application and the scheme refused in
December 2004.

. The receipt of an additional objection from Winchmore Hill Residents’
Association.
. The statement of Councillor Dinah Barry, Winchmore Hill Ward Councillor

against the application.

. The deputation of Mr Brian Foyle on behalf of Winchmore Hill Residents’

Association.

. The response of Mr Peter Tasker, the applicant.
. Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.
. The officers’ recommendation was approved unanimously by the

Committee.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

456
14/03597/FUL - 4-8 VERA AVENUE, LONDON, N21 1RA

NOTED

1.

The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, highlighting a
previous application dismissed at appeal, and differences from the scheme
now under consideration.

. Impact of the proposed extension on the structural stability and condition of

the existing building was not a material planning consideration and would
be addressed through other controls, including the Building Regulations.

. An additional condition was recommended to require submission of a bat

survey prior to commencement of development and a mitigation strategy to
be agreed should this reveal bats are present.

. The deputation of Mr Simon Barker, resident of one of the flats within the
property.

. The response of Mr Paul Cavill, Hertford Planning Service, agent for the
applicant.

. The comments of Mr Dennis Stacey, Chairman of Conservation Advisory
Group.

. Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers. Concerns

were expressed regarding impact on the adjacent conservation area and
that the proposed development would be over-dominant in appearance.

. Following a debate, the officers’ recommendation was not approved by the

majority of the Committee: 4 votes for, 4 votes against and 2 abstentions. In
view of the tied vote, and noting that the majority of the Committee did not
feel able to approve the application, the Chair gave his casting vote against
the proposal.

. The proposal that planning permission be refused because the

development would detract from the setting of the conservation area and

- 359 -



Page 7
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 24.3.2015

cause significant harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding
area as a result of its height and design was supported by a majority of the
Committee: 5 votes for, 3 votes against and 2 abstentions.

AGREED that planning permission be refused for the reason below.

Reason: The proposed development, by reason of the design of the
additional floor and resultant height of the building would result in the
introduction of an overly dominant form of development detracting from the
setting of the Grange Park Conservation Area and would cause significant
harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. In this respect
the development would be contrary to Core Policies 30 and 31 of the Core
Strategy, Policies DMD 6, 8, 37 and 44 of Development Management
Document, London Plan policies 7.1, 7.4, 7.6 and 7.8, as well as the National
Planning Policy Framework (Sections 7 and 12).

457
14/04730/FUL - 29 GARFIELD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4RP

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.
2. The officers’ recommendation was approved unanimously by the
Committee.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

458
14/04854/FUL - 18 BRIMSDOWN AVENUE, ENFIELD, EN3 5HZ

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.
2. The officers’ recommendation was approved unanimously by the
Committee.

AGREED that, subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement, the Planning
Decisions Manager / Head of Development Management be authorised to
grant planning permission, subject to the conditions set out in the report.

459
FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED
1. The next meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Tuesday 28

April. The venue will be Rooms 2 & 3, Dugdale Centre, Thomas Hardy
House, 39 London Road, Enfield, EN2 6DS.

- 360 -



Page 8
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 24.3.2015
2. The Planning Panel meeting regarding Edmonton County School and the
multi-use games areas (MUGASs) would be held on Thursday 9 April at

Enfield Civic Centre, Conference Room. The Panel would be made up of
three members: Councillors Levy, During and Chamberlain (chair).

- 361 -



COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEM 5
PLANNING COMMITTEE
28.04.2015

REPORT OF:
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:

Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2014/2015 - REPORT NO 233

SUBJECT -

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

5.1

APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

5.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 349 applications were determined

between 11/03/2015 and 19/04/2015, of which 292 were granted and 57
refused.

5.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

5.2

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)

(2)

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP).

Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 11 A cnonda o

/4 \3\rl LA ISR A B I |

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

. »oqth :
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 28" April 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Cockfosters
Planning, Highways & Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Transportation Mr Ray Reilly 020 8379 5237
Ref: 14/02634/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 25 Lancaster Avenue, Barnet, EN4 OEP,

PROPOSAL: Conversion of single family dwelling into 4 self -contained flats comprising
(1x1bed, 1x2 bed, 1x3 bed and 1x4 bed units) involving a part lower ground, part ground
floor side and rear extension with balcony at first floor rear, rear dormer and rooflights to
front and side and associated alterations to the front of the site to include 2 on site car
parking spaces, bins and cycle enclosures and associated landscaping.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr L CHRISTOFOROU Mr Andreas Charalambous
P.O.Box 619 50 NORMAN COURT
Borehamwood 395 NETHER STREET
WD6 9AG LONDON
United Kingdom London

N3 1QQ

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:

That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement, the Head of Development
Management/Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to
conditions.

Note for Members:
This case would normally be dealt with under delegated authority, but has been put before
Planning Committee at the request of Councillor Charalambous due to the level of local objection.




Page 12

Ref: 14/02634/FUL LOCATION: 25 Lancaster Avenue, Barnet, EN4 OEP,

Nursing Home
==

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

ENF’ELD Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
Council




1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

41.1

Page 13

Site and Surroundings

The application site is located on the northern side of Lancaster Avenue. The
property is a semi- detached house flanked on either side by two residential
properties of a similar size and design. The site slopes significantly from the
public highway boundary at the front towards the rear of the site, represented
by almost a 2 metre drop in land levels from the front of the site to the rear
elevation of the house. The surrounding area is pre-dominantly residential in
nature, made up of large family detached or semi- detached houses.

The site is located in the Hadley Wood Conservation Area. It has a PTAL of 3.

Proposal

The application proposes the conversion of the existing single family dwelling
into 4 self -contained flats comprising (1x1bed, 1x2 bed and 2x3 bed units),
involving a part lower ground, part ground floor side and rear extension with
balcony at first floor rear level, rear dormer and rooflights to the front and
side.

In relation to the proposed extensions. These comprise:

A single storey side side extension 3.3 metres wide and 8.2 metres deep with
a hipped/pitched roof over to a height of 4 metres at the top of the pitch.

Part lower ground and part ground level rear extension to run the same depth
as an extension at No. 27 and the full width of the property linking up with the
extension. The extension would have a flat roof over with obscure glazed roof
lantern. When viewed from the rear garden due to the drop in levels this
would have a height 5.2 metres.

A rear facing roof terrace on top of part of the ground floor rear extension with
glazed balustrade and side screening panels.

Rear facing dormer window 2 metres wide, positioned centrally on the roof,
three front and three rear facing rooflights.

Relevant Planning History

14/02639/HOU: Planning permission was granted in September 2014 for a
part single storey, part lower ground floor side and rear extension, rear
dormer and front and side rooflights. It should be noted that this application
granted planning permission for the same extensions and alterations that
are currently proposed as part of this application.

Consultation

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transportation:

Traffic and Transportation raise no objections to the principle of the
development or the level of off-street car parking proposed. Although the
PTAL rating is 3 (good) and the level of off-street parking provided could be
higher than proposed, Lancaster Avenue has no parking controls and there
is capacity for on-street parking in this location. It is considered that the



Page 14

elements to deal with cycle parking, refuse and the vehicular access can be
dealt with by condition.

Tree Officer

4.1.2 No objections although there should be conditions assigned in relation to
landscaping.

Duchy of Lancaster

4.1.3 No objections raised.
4.2 Public

4.2.1 Twenty neighbouring and nearby occupiers have been consulted. Following
the receipt of amended plans and additional information a further re-
consultation was undertaken. In addition, a site notice was also displayed at
the site

4.2.2 Fifteen letters of objections were received following the initial consultation
and 8 further letters were received following the consultation on the revised
plans. The objections raised can be summarised as:

e The proposed conversion would be out of character with the Conservation
Area.

It would impact on the appearance and integrity of the adjoining area.

e The scale of the development is wholly out of keeping with the area. It would
result in 11 bedrooms which will detract from the character and would cause
parking problems.

e The proposal will prejudice parking on the street and the free flow of traffic.

¢ The intention to turn the front driveway into a car parking area is out of
keeping with the street and the conservation area as a whole.

e The loss of the garage door to be replaced by a window would be out of
character with the area and other houses on this section of the street.

e There were concerns raised about the scale of the side extension onto the
occupants of Number 23. It should be set in 1 metre from the boundary of the
site.

o There would be velux windows in the roof of the building which would
overlook Number 23. In addition it is considered that the rear terrace would
create an impact in terms of overlooking.

e The side facing window of the living room on the first floor would overlook
Number 23.

e The proposal would set a negative precedent for other conversions on the
street and in the adjoining area.

4.2.3 In addition, the Hadley Wood Association have objected to the application
raising the following concerns:

e The proposal is out of character with the adjoining area.

o Provision of 4 car parking spaces is totally inadequate; there is already a
serious problem on Lancaster Avenue with parking.

o Proposed new window to west side elevation will impact on privacy to
Number 23.



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 15

Planning Policy Considerations
London Plan

3.3 Increasing housing supply

3.4 Optimising housing potential

3.5 Quality and design of housing developments
3.8 Housing choice

3.9 Mixed and balanced communities

3.10 Definition of affordable housing

3.11 Co-ordination of housing development and infrastructure
5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

5.3 Sustainable design and construction

5.7 Renewable energy

5.10 Urban greening

5.13 Sustainable drainage

5.14 Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
5.15 Water use and supplies

5.16 Water self-sufficiency

5.18 Construction, excavation and demolition waste
6.9 Cycling

6.13 Parking

7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
7.2 An inclusive environment

7.3 Designing out crime

7.4 Local character

7.5 Public realm

7.6 Architecture

7.8 Heritage Assets and Archaeology

8.2 Planning Obligations

8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy

Core Strateqy

CP3 Affordable Housing

CP4  Housing Quality

CP5 Housing Types

CP9  Supporting Community Cohesion

CP20 Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure

CP21 Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage
Infrastructure

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

CP31: Built and Landscape Heritage

CP32 Pollution

CP46 Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document

DMD 2 Affordable Housing for Developments of less than 10 units
DMD 3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes
DMD 5 Residential Conversions

DMD 6 Residential Character



5.4

6.0

6.1

DMD 7
DMD 8
DMD 9
DMD10
DMD11
DMD14
DMD37
DMD38
DMD44
DMD45
DMD47
DMD49
DMD50
DMD51
DMD52
DMD53
DMD55
DMD58
DMD59
DMD64
DMD65
DMD68
DMD69
DMD72
DMD73
DMD79
DMD80
DMD81

Page 16

Development of Garden Land

General Standards for New Residential Development
Amenity Space

Distancing

Rear Extensions

Side Extensions

Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
Design Process

Preserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets
Parking Standards and Layout

New Road, Access and Servicing

Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
Environmental Assessments Method

Energy Efficiency Standards

Decentralised Energy Networks

Low and Zero Carbon Technology

Use of Roofspace/ Vertical Surfaces

Water Efficiency

Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk

Pollution Control and Assessment

Air Quality

Noise

Light Pollution

Open Space Provision

Children’s Play Space

Ecological Enhancements

Trees on development sites

Landscaping

Other relevant policv/guidance

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Practice Guidance

Enfield Characterisation Study

London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance

S106 SPD

Hadley Wood Conservation Area Character Appraisal
Article 4 Direction 2006.

Analysis

The principle issues for consideration under this application are:

Principle of the Flat Conversion

Density

Impact on Character of Conservation Area
Neighbouring Amenity

Standard of Accommodation

Private Amenity Space

Highways Issues

S106 Requirements

Sustainability Issues



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Page 17

Principle of the Flat Conversion

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan promotes the optimisation of housing output
within different types of locations. Policy 3.8 of the London Plan also
encourages the Council to provide a range of housing choices in order to take
account of the various different groups who require different types of housing.
The proposal would be compatible with these policies, and Core Policy 2 of
the Core Strategy, insofar as it would maintain and increase the Borough’s
housing stock.

The Council commissioned a Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA)
which was published in 2010. This formed part of the Council’s evidence base
for its Core Strategy, which was examined at Public Inquiry and found to be
sound by the Secretary of State and subsequently adopted by the Council in
November 2010. Its recommendations are expressed in Policy 5 of the Core
Strategy.

The Policy seeks to ensure that ‘new developments offer a range of housing
sizes to meet housing needs’ and that the Policy should support the Council’s
plan for a Borough-wide mix of housing that reflects the needs and level of
supply identified in the SHMA (2010). The ‘Justification’ in support of the
Policy 5 of the Core Strategy is instructive. In paragraphs 5.40 and 5.41 it is
noted that the supply-to-need shortage is most acute for larger dwelling types
and that is unlikely that the required supply can be met through new build
completions.

The Policy requires that the Council, over the lifetime of the Core Strategy,
plans for a mix of housing that is 80% houses (mainly 3 and 4-beds) and 20%
one and two-bed flats. Given that new build completions are unlikely to meet
the required supply of larger family dwellings, the loss of a family house
without a suitable replacement cannot be supported if the Council is to meet
its requirements under Policy 5 of the Core Strategy.

In this respect and where conversion of family homes to flats are proposed,
Policy DMD 5 of the Development Management Document states the following:

Development involving the conversion of existing units into self-contained flats
and houses of multiple occupation (HMO) will only be permitted if the following
criteria are met. All development must:

a. Provide a high quality form of accommodation which meets internal floor
space standards in the London Plan;

b. Not harm the residential character of the area or result in an excessive
number or clustering of conversions. The number of conversions: must not
exceed 20% of all properties along any road; and only 1 out of a consecutive
row of 5 units may be converted.

c. Not lead to an unacceptable level of noise and disturbance for occupiers and
adjoining properties;

d. Incorporate adequate parking and refuse storage arrangements that do not,
by design or form, adversely affect the quality of the street scene.



6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

6.2.9

6.2.10

6.2.11

Page 18

2. For the conversion of existing family units into self contained flats:

a. Compensatory provision for family accommodation (3 bedrooms +) is
provided within the development.

Having regards to the requirements of DMD 5 it is considered the principle of
the proposed flat conversion is acceptable. The proposal provides for a net
gain of 3 units on the site and following the proposed extensions works all
would internal have living space in accordance with and above the London
Plan standards. In addition the application proposes 2x3 bed units with
access to their own rear garden, both of which would be regarded as
acceptable family units. This results in a net gain in one family unit.

A site visit and a check of the planning history in Lancaster Avenue indicates
that there appear to be no other flat conversions on the street, with the
exception of N0.33 Lancaster Avenue, which would appear to be a purpose
built block of flats. Accordingly, the proposal would not result in either an
excessive number or clustering of conversions.

Policy DMD 5 also states that conversion proposals should not harm the
residential character of the area and that adequate parking and refuse
storage arrangements should be provided that do not adversely affect the
quality of the street scene. This is particularly important in a conservation
area such as this. One of the primary issues identified in the Conservation
Area Character Appraisal is the gradual erosion of the green character and
appearance of front driveways in the conservation area.

Originally the application proposed to completely hard- landscape the front
garden area which was considered unacceptable in terms of its impact on the
character of the property and the Hadley Wood Conservation Area. To
address this, the applicant has submitted amended plans which significantly
reduce the area of hard landscaping on the site and now propose just two
parking spaces and a pedestrian path, to the front garden, allowing for the
retention of the majority of the existing soft landscaped garden area.

The plans also originally included storage of bins and cycle stores in the front
driveway area. Whilst they could be partly screened by planting, it was
considered that this would negatively impact upon the character of the site.
This element of the scheme has been changed and the bins and cycle stores
have now been incorporated within the building in a newly created storage
area behind a new wooden garage style door. This is considered a better
arrangement and ensures that refuse storage/cycle storage has no impact on
the street scene.

It is recognised that a number of objections have been raised in relation to the
impact of overspill parking on the street. These have been taken into account
The applicant has produced a parking survey that concludes that only 16% of
parking spaces were occupied in the early morning period. This has been
taken at face value. Officers have also undertaken site visits on two
occasions to assess the application, once at approximately 9am in the
morning and on a second occasion around noon, and on both occasions
there appeared to be on street parking availability. In addition a lot of the
houses on Lancaster Avenue have relatively expansive driveway parking for
2-3 cars. Taking all factors into consideration, although the proposal may



6.2.13

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

Page 19

result in some overspill parking, it is considered that this will not be to such an
extent that it would cause disruption to residents or lead to conditions
prejudicial to highway safety.

In conclusion it is considered the principle of the proposed conversion is
acceptable. It would provide for additional living accommodation in the
borough in a sustainable location without negatively impacting upon the
character and appearance of the site or the conservation area. It is
considered compliant with policies CP5 of the Core Strategy and DMD 5 of
the Development Management Document.

Density

Density assessments must acknowledge new guidance outlined in the NPPF
and particularly the London Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the
application of policies to promote higher densities, although they must also be
appropriate for the area.

Policy 3.4 (Table 3.2) of the London Plan sets standards for appropriate
density levels with regards to location, existing building form, massing, and
having regard to the PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score,. A
total of 15 habitable rooms would be provided on the site which has an area
of 0.1434 hectares. According to the guidance in (Table 3.2) of the London
Plan, an overall density of between 150-250hr/ha may be acceptable. The
development proposed equates t0105 hr/ha.

Impact on Character of Conservation Area

One of the primary issues for consideration regarding this application is the
impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the Hadley Wood
Conservation Area.

Statutory / Policy background

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (“Listed Buildings Act”) confirms that “special attention shall be paid to
the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that
area.” Case law has established that where an authority finds that a
development proposal would harm the setting of a listed building or the
character and appearance of a conservation area, it must give that harm
“considerable importance and weight” (Barnwell Manor Wind Energy Ltd v
East Northamptonshire District Council [2014] EWCA Civ 137).

Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF”) (Conserving
and enhancing the historic environment) advises LPAs to recognise heritage
assets as an “irreplaceable resource” and to “conserve them in a manner
appropriate to their significance” (para. 126).

When determining planning applications, LPAs are advised to take into
account of:

o ‘“the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;



6.4.5

6.4.6

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

Page 20

o the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

e the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness” (para.131)

Paragraph 132 confirms that it is the significance of the heritage asset upon
which a development proposal is considered and that “great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation”. LPAs need to consider whether a
proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of
significance of a designated heritage asset. Proposals that lead to substantial
harm or loss to a designated heritage asset should be refused unless it can
be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve
substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss, or it meets with the
test identified at paragraph 133. Where a development will lead to less than
substantial harm, the harm is to be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal, including securing its optimum viable use (para. 134).

The National Planning Practice Guidance (“NPPG”) provides some guidance
on the term “public benefit” at paragraph 20:

“Public benefits may follow from many developments and could be anything
that delivers economic, social or environmental progress as described in the
National Planning Policy Framework (Paragraph 7). Public benefits should
flow from the proposed development. They should be of a nature or scale to
be of benefit to the public at large and should not just be a private benefit.
However, benefits do not always have to be visible or accessible to the public
in order to be genuine public benefits.
o Public benefits may include heritage benefits, such as:
e sustaining or enhancing the significance of a heritage asset and the
contribution of its setting
e reducing or removing risks to a heritage asset
securing the optimum viable use of a heritage asset in support of its long
term conservation”

A “benefit” is not limited solely to heritage benefits but also to all material
planning benefits arising from a particular scheme, providing that they meet
with the relevant policy tests for conditions and obligations.

The NPPG also advises that the conservation of heritage assets in a manner
appropriate to their significance is a core planning principle. It also advises
that conservation is an “active process of maintenance and managing
change”. Heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and effective
conservation delivers wider social, cultural, economic and environmental
benefits.

Significance, as advised within the NPPF derives not only from a heritage
asset’s physical presence but also from its setting. When assessing
significance, it is advised that great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation and the more important the asset, the greater the weight to be
applied. Where a development leads to less than substantial harm to the
significance of the heritage asset, the harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal, including its optimum viable use. The NPPG
advises that what matters in assessing if a proposal causes substantial harm



6.4.10

6.4.11

6.4.12

6.4.13

6.4.14

Page 21

is the impact on the significance of the heritage asset. It does also advise that
‘substantial harm’ is a high test, so may not arise in many cases.

Policies 7.4 of the London Plan and CP30 of the Local Plan seek to ensure
that new developments have appropriate regard to their surroundings, and
that they improve the environment in terms of visual and residential amenity.
Additionally DMD44 of the DMD states that developments that fail to conserve
and enhance the special interest, significance or setting of a heritage asset
will normally be refused. Development affecting heritage assets or their
setting should seek to complement the asset in all aspects of its design ,
materials and detailing.

As stated earlier the proposed extensions and alterations forming part of this
application have already been approved under 14/02639/HOU and found to
result in no harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area.
Accordingly, these are not further considered as part of this section of the
report. The issue to consider in relation to the current application is whether
the conversion of the extended property into flats, along with the associated
external works associated with the provision of parking spaces in part of the
front garden, would in themselves result in *harm’.

The previously approved plans included the provision of a garage within the
side extension and therefore presented a garage door to the front elevation of
the extension. The current proposals involve the use of this space for a refuse
and cycle store. As a consequence the width of the door opening has reduced
and the doors would open conventionally, rather than an up and over garage
door. Amended plans have been received to ensure the doors incorporated
are timber doors. This modest change to the front elevation of the side
extension, compared to the previously approved extensions, would not result
in harm to the character or appearance of the conservation area.

The conversion of the property into flats is generating a need to provide some
off street parking. The existing property presently has the benefit of a garage
to the side and there is a rough surfaced driveway leading to this garage. The
application originally proposed the surfacing of the entire front garden in order
to accommodate parking. This was not considered acceptable. The revised
proposals now provide for surfacing to accommodate two parking spaces and
a pedestrian pathway. This results in a loss of a small section of boundary
hedging to the site frontage and the surfacing of approximately a third of the
front garden to accommodate two parking spaces, a pedestrian pathway and
hard surfaced area around the existing entrance door and in front of the
refuse/cycle store. The existing pedestrian pathway leading to the front door
would be reinstated as soft landscaping and the hedging across the frontage
would be reinstated. The submitted drawings also provide for the introduction
of soft landscaping to the boundary of the site with No23, where none
presently exists, and behind the parking spaces.

The Hadley Wood Conservation Area Character Appraisal recognises that
front gardens make a particularly important contribution to the informality and
spaciousness of the area. The Character Appraisal acknowledges that it may
be possible to accommodate a small area of hard standing without seriously
affecting the appearance of the area, but notes that now a number of houses
feature large expanses of tarmac or paving. This results in the loss of most of



6.4.15

6.4.16

6.4.17

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

Page 22

the planting and front gardens and seriously detracts from the green and leafy
character of the area.

It is considered that the amended plans provide for a modest area of
hardstanding, as the Character Area Appraisal recognises as being possible
to accommodate without seriously affecting the appearance of the area. The
proposals also provide for enhancement to the remaining area of garden,
such as to ensure that the overall the impact on the conservation area is
considered to be neutral.

The internal works to the property to create 4 flats would have no external
impact.

In summary, it is considered that the proposed development would not harm
the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Neighbouring Amenity

From the perspective of neighbouring amenity the main properties to take into
consideration are those on either side at Numbers 23 and 27. The extensions
forming part of this application are the same as those already granted
planning permission under reference 14/02639/HOU and therefore the
impact of these on the amenities of the occupiers of these properties has
already been considered and found to be acceptable.

Impact on Number 23

The objections from the residents of Number 23 in relation to the proposed
extensions have been considered. The proposed side extension would extend
the property closer to No.23 than the existing property. However, it is not
adjudged to cause harm to their amenity. It would be separated by an
average distance of 4.5m from the side elevation and it is considered that it
would not be unduly overbearing or cause an unacceptable sense of
enclosure or loss of outlook.

Due to the orientation and position of the existing garage at the rear of
Number 23 at ground floor level it is considered that the proposed extensions
to the rear of Number 25 would not have a materially noticeable impact to the
occupants of Number 23.

Additionally whilst a roof terrace is proposed at first floor level, taking into
account the tapered nature of the sites to one another and the fact that they
are relatively wide and expansive, coupled with the fact that the terrace would
be recessed in behind the roof lantern along with timber privacy screens on
either side, it is considered that this would not give rise to overlooking or a
loss of privacy.

The neighbours at Number 23 have also raised concerns about the proposed
side window at first floor level within Flat 3. These comments have been
noted. A condition is recommended to ensure that any side windows are
obscured glazed and fixed shut to a height of 1.7m above floor level to
safeguard privacy.

Impact onto Number 27




6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

Page 23

The impact of the proposal onto Number 27 is also considered to be
acceptable. The part lower and upper ground floor rear extension would not
project beyond the existing rear extension at Number 27 with the exception of
a small step in the centre of the extension. Therefore there would be no
impact on outlook or light. Having regard to the first floor level of Number 27
the proposed extension including the proposed roof terrace and associated
screening would not break a 30 degree line of sight from the nearest
habitable room window in accordance with DMD11. The application also
propose relatively extensive works at basement/ lower ground level. However,
these would not have any impact on light, outlook or privacy. The impact of
construction work on the structural stability of the adjoining property would be
addressed through the Building Regulations and/or the Party Wall Act.

The proposed roof terrace would be set in 5 metres from the boundary
between the properties with the immediate sides of the terrace screened from
direct view by a 1.8 metre timber screen on either side. Given this it is
considered that no undue overlooking or loss of privacy would result.

In conclusion it is considered that this terrace and the proposed extensions in
their entirety have an acceptable impact onto the occupiers of Number 27. It
is considered necessary to assign a condition to ensure that the flat roof
outside of the living room of flat is not used as a terrace.

Standard of Accommodation including Private Amenity

The application proposes 1x1 bed, 1x2 bed and 2x3 bed units. The 2x3 bed
units would be split level over lower ground floor and ground levels. Both flats
are expansive units at 139sgm and 158 sgm respectively, well in excess of
the minimum London Plan requirements of 93sgm. All the individual rooms
are large and spacious and the layout of both units is very accessible. They
would both be dual aspect and have access to their own rear garden areas at
165 and 186 sqgm respectively. It is considered they would provide for a very
good standard of family accommaodation.

The proposed 1x1 bed flat at first floor level is 56sgm thereby in excess of the
minimum standard of 50sgm. The main living/kitchen area and bedroom are
both of an acceptable size individually. This flat would have access onto its
own terrace area outside at first floor level, which would be 11sgm in area.

The 4" flat is a 1x2 bed flat split over first floor and loft levels. This flat would
have an area of approximately 103sgm internally, in excess of the London
Plan standard of 70sqm. There would be a large living/ kitchen room 42sgm
in area with both bedrooms and bathroom facilities in the loft space. Both of
the bedrooms would be of a sufficient area and whilst it is recognised part of
those rooms would have a limited floor to ceiling height, they would provide
for functional bedrooms.

It is acknowledged that this flat would have no access to a dedicated private
amenity space in accordance with DMD9. Whilst a terrace to the rear of the
flat at first floor level would be physically possible it would have an
unacceptable impact onto the amenity of the occupants of Number 27 .
Having regard to this, the fact that this is a conversion with inherent
constraints on the ability to provide dedicated private amenity space, and
when balanced against the Borough’s housing need, the breach in policy is
considered acceptable in this instance.



6.6.5

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.8

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

Page 24

On balance of all factors and for the reasons outlined as above it is
considered the standard of accommodation proposed is acceptable having
regard to policy DMD 6, 8 and 9 and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan.

Traffic and Highways Issues

Traffic and Transportation have raised no objection to the principle of the
development or the level of off-street car parking proposed. Although the
PTAL rating is 3 and the level of off-street parking provided could be higher
than proposed, Lancaster Avenue has no parking controls and there is
capacity for on-street parking in this location.

It is recognised that objections have been received from residents siting
concerns about additional on street parking on top of existing commuter
parking levels in the area. However, as referred to earlier in the report,
officers have visited the site on two occasions during the process of the
application and there was a high level of on street parking availability. The
site is in a relatively accessible location in terms of public transport. In
addition, the majority of houses on Lancaster Avenue have driveway parking
for at least two car parking spaces. Therefore even if this proposal were to
increase on street parking in the area it is highly unlikely that it would result in
parking displacement and an unacceptable level of disturbance to existing
residents.

Traffic and Transportation have raised issues in relation to the combination of
the bins stores and cycle parking. However, it is considered that they are
located in the only place possible so as to not create an impact to the visual
amenity of the site. There were also queries raised in relation to the proposed
access to the site in relation to pedestrian visibility and the need to relocate a
lamp column on site. However it has been suggested that this query can be
dealt with via a pre-commencement planning condition.

S106 Requirements

On 28th November 2014 the Government introduced immediate changes to
the National Planning Practice Guidance to state that contributions for
affordable housing and tariff style planning obligations should not be sought
for small scale and self-build developments containing 10 units or less with a
gross area of no more than 1000sg.m. In the light of the implications for this
for the Councils adopted DMD policy, a report was taken to the Local Plan
Cabinet Sub Committee on 15th January 2015. At the meeting and in the light
of guidance issued, Members agreed the approach set out below for dealing
with planning applications and as the basis for future consultation on the
revised S106 SPD.

Education contributions will no longer be required for developments of less
than 11 units.

Affordable housing contributions may still be sought for developments of 1-9
units in accordance with the following:



6.8.4

6.8.5

6.9

6.9.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 25

Individuals and self-builders will be exempt from requiring to pay affordable
housing contributions; Contributions may continue to be required from other
developers subject to viability testing, with a view to ensuring that
contributions do not result in a disproportionate burden and an obstacle to the
delivery of housing.

In this instance the applicant has confirmed that they are a small scale
developer. Subsequently a review of the viability of the scheme has been
conducted and overseen by the councils independently appointed viability
assessor. Taking into account the viability of the scheme along with the
allowances for Vacant Building Credit as outlined in Chapter 7 of the councils
draft S106 SPD a figure of £65,464.57 has been agreed towards off site
affordable housing contributions, with an additional £ 3,273.23 towards a
S106 Monitoring Fee. This would be secured via a legal agreement t should
the proposal be granted planning permission.

Sustainability Issues

As part of their application the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement
and Code for Sustainable Homes Pre- Assessment. Overall it is considered
that the information submitted is acceptable, and relevant conditions have
been suggested.

Conclusion

It is considered that the proposed extensions and the conversion of the
property would not harm the character or appearance of the conservation
area or have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of adjoining residents.
The standard of accommodation for all proposed units is acceptable and the
scheme will make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock, including the
provision of two family sized flats with garden access. The proposal is
unlikely to have an impact to highway function and safety. Accordingly, itis
considered that the proposed development is acceptable.

Recommendation

That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement, the Head of

Development Management/Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to
GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.

C60 Approved Plans

CO7 Details of Materials

C09 Details of Hard Surfacing

C16 Private Vehicles Only - Parking Areas
C17 Details of Landscaping

C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 26

C24 Obscured Glazing (Proposed Side Elevation)
C25 No additional Fenestration
C59 Cycle parking spaces

The balcony screens for the proposed terrace as shown on Drawing Numbers
LANC/H/14/A/10 Rev A and LANC/H/14/A/13 Rev A shall be implemented
prior to completion of the proposed works and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interest of neighbouring amenity.
The proposed roof lantern shall be fitted with obscure glazing.

Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupier of the proposed ground
floor unit.

C26 Restriction of Use of Extension Roof to the rear of Flat 4 as on Drawing
Number LANC/H/14/A/10 Rev A.

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the development shall not commence
until detailed drawings showing the means of access to the development
including the siting, levels, materials, parking layout, visibility splays,
relocation of existing lamp post and street lighting have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before it is
occupied. Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary
Development Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or
traffic flow on adjoining highways.

Development shall not commence until evidence in the form of a revised
design stage assessment conducted by an accredited Code for Sustainable
Homes Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, has been
provided and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
evidence provided shall confirm that the dwellings can achieve a Code for
Sustainable Homes rating of no less than Code Level 4.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change there from
shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure
sustainable development in accordance with adopted Policy.

C51A Time Limited Permission



Andreas + Buxton Associates
| CHARTERED ARCHITECT + INTERIOR DESIGNERS
50 Norman Court 335 Nether Street London N3 1QQ UK

T.  +44(0)20 83716625

E

Rear Garden
(Flat 1: Amenity Area 165m?)

Evergreen
Holly

=

Patio
Void Above
Bedroom 4/ Study i
i)
Living Room
= @2m)
-
= el

Rear Garden
(Flat 2: Amenity Area 186m?)

Patio
Void Above
[:=
Bedroom 3/ Study
et
Living Room
@tm) S

23
Lancaster
Avenue

Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan

——[Projeat

Project Description

f — | 25 Lancaster Avenue
|Planning J | Bamet ENa 0EP ‘

into 4 Self-

. q
Extensions, Rear Dormer & Conservation Rooflights;

r=—= p———
H \\ /)
| v e
3 4 )
| London Plan Policy 3.5 Table 3.3 s
Minimum Space & Floor Standards;
| Dwetling type (bedroom (b | GIA (sqm) o |
| persons-bedspaces (p)) (London Plan) - As Proposed |
| Frat1 (4b/ 7p) = (99 m?) - 148 m 1584 ft
Flat2 (3b/6p) = (93m?) -159 m? 1701 ft
Flat3 (3b/6p) (93 m?) -107 m¥ 1145 27
‘ Flat4 (bi2p) = | (50m3) - 52 me/ 556 f2 |
SR Lancaster
Avenue .
Notes Om 1 2 3, 5
Do not scale from this drawing | | | | | .| 1:100
Report any discrepancies | [ 1 T 1T 111250
Copyright owned by Andreas + Buxton Associates 0m 10 20 30 40 50
B = [nﬁ 7| Scale: Drg. No. Rev,
flats with Single Storey Side & Rear 10110712014 | 1:100 @ A3 || LANC/F/14/A/08

Drawing Name
Proposed Lower
Ground Floor Plan




London Plan Pollcy 3.5 Table 3.3
Minlmum Space & Floor Standards;

Dwelling type (bedroom (b)/ GIA (sqm)

persons-bedspaces (p)) (London Plan} - As Proposed
Flat1 (3b/6p) = (93 m?) =158 m% 1691 ft
Flat2 (3b/6p) = (93 m?) - 139 m?/ 1487 ft
Flat3 {1b/ 2p) = (50 m?) - 56 m? 599 fi2
Flat 4 (2bf 4p) = (70 m?) =103 m¥ 1102 2

| Soundproofing between Flats to be 3db above
ini Building

\ — I I-
Tol—— 3.7m I T 48m

L \ © - . !
: E . Gallery Gallery )
Bedroom 2 M i :
(25 Incl. bathroom! store) 0 > L
" M LX) Bedroom 2 v

O' < & (27m*inl,

; ) S bathoor

own wardrobe)

Dining

i W . O . Kitchen/ Dining Walicdn- k

AN 2 (18 Ind. dinkng) En-Suits Wardrobe -
re=ca Bathom i
@e i
@ ;

Kitchen
(25m*Indl. dicing)
T ~N |
R
] s | | store
L Entrance Hall Entrance
Hall
Wall mounted Cycle @D r\"‘b
Parking (folding back - 1100
when not in use): . litre Swrw

En-Suite
Bathroom

(8 Spaces) —  Bin A a4 .
| . Recycle/ Bedroom 1 2 '
—_ Cycle [y = '

Store 1100 g !

— litre 6 Wwe '

]

Flooring to be permeable (or
porous) surfacing which allows
water to drain through

Soft
Landscaping

Landscaping

Front Garden & Off Street Parking
to be designed in accordance with
' the Royal Horticultural Society Front Garden Existing Proposed:

v g p H
Section: 6 Total Green Area 123 m* 120 m*

' Flooring to be permeable (or
porous) surfacing which allows
water to drain through

% GreenArea/  59%  67% .
Hard Landscaping

123

. Lancaster 27 .
. Aven [
{ enue Lancaster
L 1.5m x 1.5m Clear Existing hedges L Existing hedg £ ~ I Avenue '
: Pedestrian Visability Splay to be retained to be retained e -
Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Notes Om 1 2 3 4 5
Donotscale fromthisdrawing |, |, [ [ . | . | 1:00
e 3 I Report any discrepancies L ([ L e L e s T T T
8 [30/10/14 | 04t parking! Bin Slore Ravised | Copyright owned by Andreas + Buxton Associates  Om 10 20 30 40 50
Andreas + Buxton Associates o bt e dmiee ]
CHARTERED ARCHITECT + INTERIOR L g S Project Project Description Drawing Name Date Scale: Drg. No. Rev.
50 Norman Court 395 Nether Street London N3 1QQ UK | 25 Lancaster Avenue Proposed Converslon Into 4 Self-Contalned flats with Single Storey Slde & Rear Proposed Ground Floor 01/07/2014 | 1:100 @ A3 | | LANC/F/14/A/09 |C
T.  +44(0)2083716625 E. andreasc73@mecom |Planning Barnet EN4 0EP Extenslons, Rear Dormer & Conservation Roofights; Plan




Page 29

London Pian Policy 3.5 Table 3.3
Minimum Space & Floor Standards;

Dwelling type (bedroom (bY | GIA (sqm)
persons-bedspaces (p)) (London Plan) - As Proposed
Flat1 (4b/ 7p) = (99 m?) 148 m¥ 1584 f
Flat2 (3b/6p) = (93 m?) 159 ni/ 1701 ft
Flat3 (1b/2p) = (50 m?) - 56 m?/ 599 ¢
Flat4 (2b/4p) = (70 m?) -103 m? 11028
Soundproofing between Flats to be 3db abave
ini Building i i |
v .
— :
Flat Roof  *
Obscure  Obsaure = =z ‘
Glazing  Glazing — .
Frameless glass - ‘-‘-.\ .
balustrade \._\ :
Temace (11m) =1
'\ /— I o ‘
! 5 Timber Flat Roof: M. .
privacy No Access N i
Living Room screen at s
(@1mPnc. kichan) 1.8m high Gl
g . . 30" e
D J .
I ‘ ‘ Living Room 27 1
{42m?* Incl. ktchen) '
Lancaster :
NN N Y .
— o B e Avenue

23 : .
Lancaster 27 :
Avenue Lancaster -
Avenue
Proposed First Floor Plan T
Notes Om 1 2 3 5
Do not scale from this drawing | ! | | | | | | | | |__1:100
Reportanydiscrepancies [ ' | ' | ' | " [T 11:1250
I ‘ Copyright owned by Andreas + Buxton Assodates  Om 10 20 30 40 50
Andreas + Buxton Associates :,Vf,,_ i
CHARTERED ARCHITECT + INTERIOR DI i Project Project Description Drawing Name Scale:

Date Drg. No. Rev.
50 Norman Court 395 Nether Street London N3 1QQ UK [ 5 N 25 Lancaster Avenue | Proposed Converslon iinto 4 Self-Contained flats with Single Storey Side & Rear Proposad First Floor 01/07/2014 | 1:100 @ A3 | | LANC/F14/A/10 |A
T. +44(0)2083716625 E. L OEP Rear Dormer & Plan




Page 30

London Plan Policy 3.5 Table 3.3
Minlmum Space & Floor Standards;

Dweiing type (bedroom (b} GIA (sqm)

persons-bedspaces (p)) {London Pfan) - As Proposed

Flat1 (4b/ 7p) = (98 m?) -148 m*/ 1584 ft

Flat2 (3b/ 6p) = (93 m?) =159 m*¥ 1701 ft

Flat3 (1b/2p) = (50 m?) -56 m?/ 599 f*
- Flat4 (2b/ 4p) = (70 m?) - 103 11022

[Soundproofing between Flats to be 3db above |
oimom Butting i ]

O
~ of i
H Ensun (O ;
Bathroom e —— !
) I I
Bedroom 2 )/
O (@am) -
E ‘;)
| l .
: '
23 : i 5
Lancaster 27 |
Avenue g Lancaster
Avenue !
[ 2 3 4 5
Proposed Second Floor Plan L LI N I I
Report any discrepances [+ | 1 | T T T T 1 1:1250
L l Copyright owned by Andreas + Buxton Associates  Om 10 20 30 40 50
Andreas + Buxton Associates =™
CHARTERED ARCHITECT + INTERIOR D Drsning Sonm. | Project Project Description Drawing Name Date Scale: Drg. No. Rev.
50 Norman Court 395 Nether Street London N3 1QQ UK | 1| 25 Lancaster Avenue Proposed Converslon into 4 Self-Contained flats with Single Storey Side & Rear Praposed Second Floor 91/07/2014 | 1:180 @ A3 || LANC/F/14/A/41 |A
T.  +44(0)2083716625 E. 73 Planning Banet EN4 0EP Rear Dormer & C Plan




Dnn-p 31

9 Jeuuoq seay 430 yN3 J0usEE Bujuueyy| Wooewde oseaipue 13 5299 168 02(0) v+ "L
V| vLVIVLIA/ONYT || € D 00L:L | $10Z/20/L0 SUOREABI3 Posodolg || ey B BPIS Ae.0ls eIBUIS UM SIEL PEUIEIUOD-HOS ¥ OJu| UO|SIBAUCD Pesodoid enueAy iejseaue SZ ! 18| 511 oy e vopuo1 jeans JetieN g6 oD uewIoN o me >> = CO_HN>0 _ m
Aoy “oN *B10 0le0g oieq euwey Bumelq uopduoseq 10efoid wefosd | L - 0 HOMALNI + LOILHOHY OFHILHVHO
— —— - .jau S3)BID0SSYy uo)xng + sealpuy wv_w UQWOQOL&
08 or 0 4 o wo i1
osgbik | o | o | ¢ 1 . by ] 400]3 punoig
ooty [ o | o [ % [ & T & 1 aemo
S 14 € [ I wo Bupsixa SB sHoMYdLE
Se|eNO0SSY UCING + SRBIPUY AQ PELMO JBpAdeD
sepuede.os|p Aue Yodey -
Bumesp S|y Woyj 6|eds Jou og
sejloN
Joojy
punoig
40014 184]4
m puiyaq Bujdeospue| yos Y
ueauos Aveapd ybiy wg'|
Jooty puodag
1| |
_J | swbipooy
odhy
\ o
| T
) | OhEd Apmg pwoaspeg Oph JJomOUs ———— ]
! -zZweld 40013 v.;.:EG
uspies) | e T !
i 1| wee
Jesy | i
1 i
| i
1 H 4
| = |
T e [ BUIAIT juBLoNY) qoipIRM-UIYIEM - Z Jeld [ uspied !..:M.W
“AY J6ISBIUET /Z 'OU O} JIEM fas S oS e ol4
uepseB Bupsixe Jo aURNO Bl T
' '
i P
1| we'z we'e H
i I
| _ ;
| 1
' P
N “ . I
PLIFECES
U jueyaI - el _n_
|1
“AY 19)SBOUET /Z 18 | |
uojsuelxe Bupsixe Jo suIINO |
i
'
Puljoq Bujdeaspue| yos yim i
ueeyos Aseaud ybiy we'| ]
L
woolpag Id puoas

-pield




Bujuuejg| W L@t sEsbue 3

{5jyBjUoOY UOREAISSUOD § JOULIOE JEeY ‘SUOISUBINT d30 N3 Jeweg
V| ELVITLIAIONY || eV @ 001:L | pLOZ/20/10 suopeAs|3 pesodosd 1eey B opiS Aauojs €jBu|S UiIM SIEN POUIEIUOD-)IeS ¢ Oju] LD|SIeAUD) pesodold enueAy Jeyseaue 57
‘aay ‘oN 'Rig :9|eag sleq eweN Bumeiq uopdposeq 10elaid 1osloid | Sowmg Towsia
[ oosnaiz o+

.. 0§ oy [V} 14 ol wo
0sZLL | | | S 7 |
004k | =% 5 % |
14 € 4 3 wo

$]B008SY LOIXNE + SBaIPUY AQ peumo j1yBuido)
sejouedasosip Aue podey
Buweip siy) Wwoyj ejeas 10u oq

310N

Page 32

SMOpUM
yses saquiL —

Bupsixe
sB yiomopg

si00p u_.__v_c.

co;m>m_m_ Jeay pasodouid

sse|f ssejewely

L

|
uses Aseapd
ol W' Y
Buideaspuej yog

SCYY LLEW UG\ PP+ L
3N DOL EN U0PUOT J8eUS JeyjeN S6€ HNOD UBULION 05
0 BORJILNI + LOILIHOYY GIILUVHO

ol seje|d0SSY UOIXNG + SEAIPUY

uolneAs|3 Juoi4 pasodold

00Q Jequil]
T

%g_

,UD_B LI

i‘ I

il /

uopenIesuo)




22 A W
Dagp A7

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 28" April 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Town
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841

Ms M Demetri 02083796843

Ref: 15/00453/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Rear Of 41-45, Gordon Hill, Enfield, EN2 0QS

PROPOSAL: Erection of a detached 2-storey, 3-bed single family dwelling house with off street parking at
front and solar panels to roof.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr A HALIL Mr Graham Fisher
BOWLING AND CO 1 Woodlands Avenue

62 BROADWAY Wanstead

STRATFORD Greater London
LONDON E11 3RA

E15 ING United Kingdom

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 34

Ref: 15/00453/FUL LOCATION: Rear Of 41-45, Gordon Hill, Enfield, EN2 0QS

.

Sy
gt

-

&
&
.,'.

S

o

&
.
&

X
&
&
&

¥
L

S

o

i

iy
!

X

g
g
%

e
g

2,

&
i

Ty

o

&
&

&
&

S,
gt
!

;)
%
i

;)
s

.
&
X
A
o
bt
.

X
%
%

g
I
iy

S

. .
o
250
s
R Y
ERRRRE A
N,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENFI'ELD?% Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Counci




1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Page 35

Site and Surroundings

The site is a plot of land situated to the rear of 41, 41A and 45 Gordon Hill. The plot
of land is presently enclosed by a 2m high enclosure and was made up of rubble, soil
and other such materials. The plot of land is situated next to 43 Gordon Hill, a chalet
bungalow which was erected to the rear of 39 to 41 Gordon Hill, a plot of land
previously occupied by a garage court. The site is accessed via the existing access
road between 41, 41A and 45 Gordon Hill, which also serves number 43 Gordon Hill.

Proposal

The application proposes the erection of a detached 3 bedroom dwelling house
associated amenity at the rear and car parking space. The dwelling would be two
storeys in height, with the ridge standing slightly above the ridge height of the
existing dwelling at No.43. The property would have a shallow pitched roof, with the
first floor accommodation being located partly within the roof space. All access to the
property would be from Gordon Hill, as per the existing arrangement with number 43
Gordon Hill.

Relevant Planning Decisions

TP/10/0519 (Land to the rear of 41 to 47 Gordon Hill). Planning permission refused
on 16™ April 2010 for the erection of a 2-storey block of 2 semi-detached 3-bedroom
single family dwellings with off street parking. For the following reasons:

1 The proposed development by virtue of its size, siting ,scale, bulk, massing,
layout, design and proximity to boundaries would constitute an overdevelopment
of the site resulting in a dominant and overbearing form of development out of
keeping and character with the surrounding pattern of development and
detrimental to the amenities of nearby residents contrary to Policies (I)GD1,
(DGD2 and (I)GD3, of the Unitary Development Plan with Policies 3A.3, 4B.1
and 4B.8 of the London Plan, and with PPS1: Delivering sustainable
development and PPS3: Housing.

2 The proposed further intensification of the use of the existing access into the site
having regard to its restricted width and scale of development proposed would
result in increased vehicular and pedestrian activity passing close to the windows
and doors of No 41A Gordon Hill giving rise to additional loss of privacy and
disturbance to the residents contrary to Policies (I) GD1, (I) GD2, (lI) GD3 and (ll)
H8 of the Unitary Development Plan.

3 The proposed further intensification of the use of the existing access into the site
having regard to its restricted width and scale of development proposed, would
not make satisfactory provision for pedestrian and vehicular access in
accordance with the standards adopted by the Council and would therefore
compromise highway safety including pedestrian safety detrimental to the free
flow of traffic contrary to Policies (II) GD®6, (Il) GDS8, (II) T13 and (ll) T16 of the
Unitary Development Plan.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation

No objection is raised to the proposed scheme subject to conditions.



4.1.2

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

42.4

Page 36

Thames Water

No objection raised subject to the standard informatives.
Public response
Letters were sent to 19 neighbours. In total 4 letters of objections have been

received and 1 letter of support has been received. In summary the objections are
as follows:

o Out of character.

o There are no trees on the adjacent plot.

o The rear aspects of Gordon Hill and Youngmans Close are pleasing.

) The widths of the existing gardens are narrow and the proposal would impact
sunlight and the open aspects of the existing garden.

. Privacy implications for number 43, 45, 47 and 49 Gordon Hill.

o The proposal would tower over Youngmans Close.

) Overcrowded plot due to squeezed nature.

) Impactions regarding traffic.

o Implication of the access.

o Disturbance to number 41A and 45 Gordon Hill.

o Eroding gardens.

. Access too narrow.

) Ecology implications.

o Increase in pollution

o Lack of information.

o Implication of access for emergency vehicles.

o Parking problems.

) Height of proposal is too high.

o Over development.

o The plans are incorrect with regards to adjoining properties.

o The proposal should be refused as per TP/10/0519.

) Intensification of use of the site.

) Back land development is not acceptable.

o No refuse area.

In addition an objection has been received from the Gordon Hill Residents’
Association on grounds that the proposal would result in over development of the
site. This would cause detriment to the road as a whole and individual occupants.
The proposal would cause a loss of privacy, overlooking and implications to light.
Further, there would be noise implications and traffic implications. Furthermore, the
access to the dwelling house is too narrow and would cause harm to highway and
pedestrian safety.

The Association have also referenced application TP/01/1943, which was for the
demolition of 6 garages and erection of 2 chalet bungalows to the rear of 39 to 45
Gordon Hill. This application was refused and dismissed at appeal in October 2002.
The Association have referenced the Officers and Inspectors view regarding the
access.

However, Members should note that since this decision planning permission has
been granted for the erection of a dwelling house, namely No. 43 Gordon Hill, where
the access was found to be acceptable and has been in use since the erection of the



4.2.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

Page 37

dwelling house. The approval references for number 43 Gordon Hill and its access is
TP/03/1618 in 2003 and TP/04/1762 in 2004.

All three ward Councillors (Laban, Rye and Steven) have also raised an objection to
the proposed scheme. Objections are raised with regards to the following:

Back land development.
Overlooking from the balcony.
Implications of the access.

Noise and disturbance.

Out of keeping.

Loss of amenity

Creating a precedent in the area.

Relevant Policy

The London Plan (FALP)

3.1 Ensuring equal life chances for all

3.3 Increasing housing supply

3.4 Optimising housing potential

3.5 Quality and design of housing developments

3.6 Children’s and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities

3.8 Housing choice

3.9 Mixed and balanced communities

3.10 Definition of affordable housing

3.11 Affordable housing targets

3.12 Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential and mixed use
schemes

3.13 Affordable housing thresholds

3.14  Existing housing

5.1 Climate change mitigation

5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

5.3 Sustainable design and construction

6.9 Cycling

6.11 Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion

6.13 Parking

7.4 Local character

7.6 Architecture

7.19 Biodiversity & access to nature

Core Strateqy

CP2: Housing supply and locations for new homes

CP3: Affordable housing

CP4: Housing quality

CP5: Housing types

CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure

CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure

CP24: The road network

CP30:
CP36:
CP46:

Maintaining and enhancing the built environment
Biodiversity
Infrastructure contributions



5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6..1.2

Page 38

Development Management Document

DMD2 Affordable Housing for Developments of less than 10 units
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD7 Development of Garden Land

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD38 Design Process

DMD45 Parking Standards and Layout

Other Relevant Policy

NPPF

Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document
NPPG

Housing SPG

Analysis

Principle

The site is situated to the side of 43 Gordon Hill and previously formed part of the
garden of number 45 Gordon Hill, together with land that was previously occupied as
a garage court and served via the access to Gordon Hill. Policy DMD7 seeks to
protect and enhance the positive contribution gardens make to the character of the
Borough. The policy advises that development on garden land will only be permitted
if all of the following criterial are met:

a. The development does not harm the character of the area;

b. Increased density is appropriate taking into account the site context in terms of its
location, accessibility and the provision of local infrastructure;

c. The original plot is of a sufficient size to allow for additional dwellings which
meets the standards in DMD 8 ‘General Standards for New Residential
Development’ (and other design policies);

d. The individual plot sizes, orientation and layout created are appropriate to, and
would not adversely impact on the residential amenity within the development, or
the existing pattern of development in that locality;

e. An adequate amount of garden space is retained within both of the individual
plots in accordance with the minimum amenity space standards (DMD9'Amenity
Space’), and the role of each space is enhanced to contribute towards other plan
objectives such as biodiversity, green corridors and networks; flood risk; climate
change; local context and character; and play space;

f.  The proposals would provide appropriate access to the public highway.

It is considered for that reasons set out below that the proposal would comply with
this policy, insofar that the proposal fits within an existing pattern of development
established by number 43 Gordon Hill, amenity, distancing and parking requirements
are met and the development represents a sustainable use of the land. Further, the
proposal would be compatible with Policies 3.3 and 7.5 of the London Plan and Core
Policy 2 of the Local Development Framework insofar as it provides an addition to the
Borough’s housing stock which actively contributes towards both Borough specific
and London-wide strategic housing targets. Accordingly, the principle of the erection



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Page 39

of a detached dwelling on this site is considered acceptable. However, this position
must be qualified in relation to other material considerations including: achieving an
appropriate residential mix in keeping with the character of the area; adequate
internal floor space and layout; servicing; parking provision and residential amenity.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

The proposal would be a detached dwelling with a projecting bay window. It is
different in design and appearance to the existing and adjoining chalet bungalow at
No.43, but is of a scale and mass that is similar to it. Given that the dwelling would
not form part of the established Gordon Hill street scene, being to the rear of the
existing terraces, it is considered that the different design approach would not
compromise or undermine the character of the surrounding area and it would not be
readily visible from the public domain.

The dwelling house would have a higher ridge than number 43 Gordon Hill by 0.3m.
The proposal has been designed with a pitched roof, rather than the Dutch gable roof
at number 43. The increase height is marginal which would not be fully appreciated
when viewed down the access road given the pitched roof design of the proposal.
Further, the eaves of the proposal are in line with the proposed bottom section of the
Dutch gable, thus in terms of proportionality the proposal respects number 43.

The proposal would have a ground floor bay window leading to a balcony on the first
floor which a glazed balustrade. Such feature is acceptable in design/appearance
terms. Details of finishing materials can be secured by way of a condition.

The proposal would result in a new dwelling house adjoining 43 Gordon Hill, with a
separation distance of 1m to the shared boundary and a distance of 2.7m in total
from the proposed flank elevation and the existing elevation of 43 Gordon Hill. These
separation distances are deemed to be acceptable as the majority of separation
distances along Gordon Hill are much narrower or not existing at all.

The proposed dwelling house is situated directly behind number 41 and 45 Gordon
Hill but next to 43 Gordon Hill. The proposed dwelling house would be 1m away from
the shared boundary with number 47 Gordon Hill. No objection is raised to this
element of the scheme with regards to character of the area given that the dwelling
house is situated to the rear of the site. Further, it should also be noted that number
43 already exists and the erection of a dwelling house next to number 43 would not
erode the character of the area particularly as the existing access is also to be
utilised by the proposed dwelling house.

Housing Mix and Floorspace

The most recent Borough housing needs assessment demonstrates that whilst there
is a need for all sizes of unit, that need is greatest for larger dwellings, particularly
three and four bed houses. Additionally, the National Planning Policy Framework
focuses on the delivery of housing including the provision of larger family units. The
proposal is for one three bedroom dwelling house for which there is a need within the
Borough. Therefore, the proposal responds to the identified housing needs of the
Borough and thus complies with Policy 5 of the Core Strategy, as well as DMD5 of
the Development Management Document.

The London Plan contains minimum standards for the size of new residential
accommodation. Below is a table showing the comparison of the proposed scheme
and the minimum floor area required by the London Plan. It should be noted that the



6.3.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Page 40

dwelling house has a study which has a floor area of 8 sqgm and thus can be used as
a bedroom

House Type GIA (based on | GIA — London Plan
measurement of plans) | 2011 (sq m)
(sq m)

1 3b5p 112.60 sgm 86 sgm

The proposed dwelling would exceed the minimum floor space standards and
therefore is acceptable. The proposal would comply with policy 3.5 of the London
Plan (FALP), CP4 of the Core Strategy, DMD8 of the Development Management
Document, The Mayor of London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance as well
as the NPPF.

Amenity Space Provision

Amenity space provision is provided for the dwelling at 100 sg.m and this exceeds
DMD requirements. A condition is recommended to require details of landscaping of
the garden area to ensure an appropriate setting and enhance the biodiversity of the
site.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

43 Gordon Hill

The proposed dwelling house would project 3m past the rear elevation of 43 Gordon
Hill. However, this does not cause concern given that there is no breach in the 30
degree and 45 degree line, in relation to existing windows in the rear elevation of this
property. Thus the development would have no undue impact on light or outlook to
the occupiers of this property.

A condition is recommended to remove the permitted development rights of the
dwelling under Class A (ground and first floor extensions). This is because the
proposal already projects 3m past number 43. Any further projections could cause
harm, but through the removal of its permitted development rights a planning
application would be submitted so that an assessment can be undertaken at that
stage. A condition restricting development in the roof has not been imposed given
the height of the roof and its shallow nature which would make it difficult to develop.

41, 41A, 45 and 47 Gordon Hill

DMD 10 requires a minimum of 22m separation distance between 1 - 2 and 2 storey
properties and 25m between 2 and 3 storey properties. The separation distance
between the proposal and number 41 and 41A Gordon Hill is 27m. Thus, having due
regard to this, the policy requirement with regards to separation distances are
exceeded.

The separation distance between the existing single storey rear extension at number
45 and the proposed two storey dwelling house is 21.5m. The distance between the
two storey element of number 45 and the proposal is 26m. The distance between
the rear dormer of number 45 and the proposal is 31m. Thus, the only area the
proposal falls short of the policy requirements is 0.5m between the single storey rear



6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

Page 41

extension at number 45 and the front elevation of the proposal. It is considered that
0.5m is a marginal short fall which would not warrant refusal. Thus, on balance, no
objection is raised to the scheme on this basis.

It is acknowledged that there is a balcony to the front of the proposed dwelling house
that is 11m away from the rear boundary of number 45 Gordon Hill garden. It should
be noted that the distancing standards accept 11m as the appropriate distance
between development and a common boundary. Further, the balcony area is not
deep enough to comfortably place tables and chairs in the area and thus could not be
used as a useable amenity area. Having due regard to this, it is considered that the
provision of a balcony would not give rise to undue overlooking or adjoining
properties.

No windows are to be inserted on the flank elevation and thus there would be no
views into the rear garden of number 47 Gordon Hill. Further, the development is not
situated directly to the rear of number 47 Gordon Hill. Consequently, no objection is
raised with regards to privacy, outlook, sunlight and daylight. A condition is to be
added to ensure that no openings can be inserted into the flank elevation of the
dwelling house in order to safeguard the amenities of 47 Gordon Hill.

61 Youngmans Close

DMD 10 requires a minimum distance between windows and side boundaries to be
11m. The dwelling house would face the flank elevation of number 61 Youngmans
Close. This distance is 12m. Thus, with regards to outlook, sunlight, daylight and
privacy, the proposal exceeds the minimum separation distance requirements and
thus no objection is raised.

Highways and the street tree

Parking

The Council’'s DMD Policy 45 and the London Plan Policy 6.13 require a maximum of
two car parking space to be provided for a three-bed dwelling. The proposed
parking area to the front provides two spaces for the proposed dwelling house. The
proposal provides sufficient parking for the proposed dwelling house and existing
dwelling house.

Access

The proposal is to retain the existing pedestrian and vehicular access arrangement
into the site via Gordon Hill. The layout alignment and the dimensions of the retained
access way, at 2.7m wide, will adequately facilitate at least one-way vehicular
movements into and from the site given the number of units proposed at the site.
The access is also wide enough to facilitate an emergency vehicle. In addition the
layout of the parking arrangement is satisfactory and there is adequate space for
turning in order for vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear, include
emergency vehicles. Thus, having due regard to this, no objection is raised to the
proposal.

Traffic



6.4.5

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

6.7

6.6.1

Page 42

The previous application for two dwellings on the site was refused on grounds of the
further intensification of use of the existing access road. This application is for one
dwelling only. There would be some increase in traffic associated with the two
additional parking spaces proposed to serve the dwelling. However, Traffic and
Transportation are satisfied that that this increase is marginal and would not have a
significant impact on the safe and free flow of pedestrian and vehicle movement with
regards to the public highway.

Conditions

Details of refuse and cycling can be secured by way of condition given that the plot is
substantially large enough to accommodate both requirements. Further, details of
hard surfacing, enclosure and landscaping can also be secured by way of condition.

Biodiversity

A preliminary ecological appraisal has been submitted undertaken by a professional.
The conclusion of this report is that there were no known ecological constraints
regarding the site.

Section 106

On 28" November 2014 the Government introduced immediate changes to the National
Planning Practice Guidance to state that contributions for affordable housing and tariff
style planning obligations should not be sought for small scale and self-build
developments containing 10 units or less with a gross area of no more than 1000sg.m. In
the light of the implications for this for the Councils adopted DMD policy, a report was
taken to the Local Plan Cabinet Sub Committee on 15" January 2015. At the meeting and
in the light of guidance issued, Members agreed the approach set out below for dealing
with planning applications and as the basis for future consultation on the revised S106
SPD.

Education contributions will no longer be required for developments of less than 11 units.

Affordable housing contributions may still be sought for developments of 1-9 units in
accordance with the following:

o Individuals and self-builders will be exempt from requiring to pay affordable
housing contributions;

e Contributions may continue to be required from other developers subject to
viability testing, with a view to ensuring that contributions do not result in a
disproportionate burden and an obstacle to the delivery of housing.

In this instance the applicant is considered to be an individual, as confirmed in writing by
the Agent, and thus the scheme would not be required to provide a contribution towards
affordable housing or education.

Sustainable Development

New housing developments should seek to exceed the Code for Sustainable Homes
Level 4 and should be built to Lifetime Homes Standards. A Code for Sustainable
Homes Pre — Assessment has been submitted which indicates Code Level 4 can be
achieved. Thus, no objection is raised to this element of the scheme.



6.6.2

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 43

The Energy Assessment has been undertaken demonstrating that the development
would be 25.6% improvement over Part L of the Building Regulations (2013). This
exceeds the requirements of planning policy. Thus, having due regard to this, no
objection is raised to this element of the scheme.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended)
came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England and Wales to
apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of qualifying
development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure that is needed as
a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of London has been charging
CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The Council is progressing its own CIL but
this is not expected to be introduced until spring / summer 2015. In this instance the
proposed residential development would be subject to a £20 per square metre levy in
accordance with the GLA's CIL Charging Schedule.

The applicant has indicated that the new development would create 112.60 square
metres in gross internal floor area. On this basis, the calculation and sum arising
would be as follows:

(£20/m2) x (112.60m2) x 252/223 = £2,544.86

Should permission be granted, a separate CIL liability notice would need to be
issued.

Conclusion

The erection of a detached single family dwelling house adjacent to 43 Gordon Hill
increases the Borough’s housing stock and would not detract from the residential
character and amenities of the surrounding area and in particular, the visual
amenities or privacy of the occupants of Gordon Hill and Youngmans Close. Further,
the proposal would not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of
traffic on the adjoining highway.

Recommendation

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

C60 Approved Plans

C51A Time Limited Permission
Co7 Details of materials

Cco9 Details of Hard Surfacing
Ci11 Details of Enclosure

C19 Details of Refuse Storage / Recycling Facilities

C17v Landscaping

C59 Cycle parking

Following practical completion of works a final Energy Performance Certificate
with accompanying Building Regulations compliance report shall be submitted
to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall reflect the
carbon reduction targets stated in the pre-assessment and energy report
accompanying the scheme. Where applicable, a Display Energy Certificate
shall be submitted within 18 months following first occupation.

CoNoOhl~LWNE



11.

12

10.

Page 44

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction targets
are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, DMD51 of the
Development Management Document, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the
London

Evidence confirming that the development achieves a Code for Sustainable
Homes (or relevant equivalent) rating of no less than ‘Code Level 4’ shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local planning Authority. The
evidence required shall be provided in the following formats and at the following
times:

a. a design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited Code Assessor
and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, shall be submitted at
pre-construction stage prior to the commencement of superstructure
works on site; and,

b. a post construction assessment, conducted by and accredited Code
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation certificate, shall be
submitted following the practical completion of the development and prior to
the first occupation.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change there from
shall take place without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of the
Council and Policies 3.5, 5.2, 5.3, 5.7, 5.9, 5.12, 5.13, 5.15, 5.16, 5.18, 5.20 &
6.9 of the London Plan 2011 as well as the NPPF.

The development shall be implemented to accord with Lifetime Homes
standards. Prior to occupation of the development evidence confirming
compliance shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development allows for the future adaptability of
the home to meet with the needs of future residents over their lifetime in
accordance with Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policy 3.5 of the London
Plan 2011.

The development shall not commence until details of surface drainage works
have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The details shall be based on an assessment of the potential for disposing of
surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system in accordance with
the principles as set out in the Technical Guidance to the National Planning
Policy Framework. The drainage system shall be installed/operational prior to
the first occupation and a continuing management and maintenance plan put in
place to ensure its continued function over the lifetime of the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the sustainable management of water, minimise flood risk
and to minimise discharge of surface water outside of the curtilage of the



13

14

Page 45

property in accordance with Policy CP28 of the Core Strategy, Policies 5.12 &
5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or any amending Order, no
buildings or extensions to buildings shall be erected without the prior approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties and
the availability of adequate amenity space commensurate with its occupation
as a single family dwelling house

C25 No additional fenestration



Woo'Jog-e MM . .
woo'jog-edjrew : 3 suoleAs|3 B suonoag pasodold ~ AV 0s°L
OTEEL VESTO : L UL oNwvE @0 - .
VM Z3C “J31ISH 1S ‘asenbs [eAoy €T xmA'Z uopeayddy Bujuueld 00'8Z0k sweu ois
1'[eH ¥ JN
LQS oSl H_ il uopeoyddy Buiuueld svonsopaspus soumei sioouduo
= pue g peal aq ey UL
alod S
10 Jou3 *fouedaios|p Aue pue a)is UO PaxdBYD Bq 0} SUOISUBIP Iy
r TV 1€ 3[83S 03 JUld
WQC‘_Nm e ) ) s 104 o WBAHoD 5 Bupesp S
IH UOpJ09 G- -
BrReae IItH 10PICD STV - 9071d'8204 %0 onssibueid| | w| -
193r08d Noisings ON ONIMYED aLva SLNIWANIWY | YHO | NHa | A3 V1S
[T 3 a a v
o5t 01
NOILVAIT3 LSVI-HL¥ON -8 NOILO3S
R
v - — - 0001y r— — — — — — - - — — S oo oo -G
A L] JL#
o
JENNg
Iie| woo. Sy
R
[ i
0ov'ew fowr
N I | NN
056°€Y T4 056'EY TS
IS
8
woouyjeg Buigue g
3
“““ e —— Sl Geapead g
““““““““““““ 05g°9p Buile) 059y Bulied e
3
s
A A A A
(o] aur Atepunog 3sap YHoN aurq Aiepunog jse3 yinog auiq Arepunog jse3 yinog aurq Arepunog 3sapm UoN
N [
NOILVA3T3 LSIM-HLYON
0oy - — — e T
00E'LY T4
(4

056y T4

059G Sleld IEM.

05¢°9y Bulled

A
surq Kiepunog 1sepm yinos

A
aur Aiepunog jse3 yuoN

slaued Ad 0}
uwNjoD WWEOPX00Y
apeuyjsnjeg sse|9

wWw()ogxX(Y)oSE “1'4D"d 18 Uilild pueg Jaise)
ww()ogx(U)oge “1'4''d 18 Japiog pueg Jdjseld
wm‘_mn_ - 19pJog MOPUIAA YOO pueg Jajse|d
JIBWS - 18PIOG MOPUIAL YOO PUBE JoJSEld -
g Inoj0) - Japuay
Y IN0J0D - Japudy
Jooy eels

NG FOBONG T

A




Wod°40g-B"Mmmm g .
woo'jog-edjrew : 3 suoleAs|3 B suonoag pasodold ~ AV 0s°L

e e FLL ONIMYED aBioaHD NmvEa w08

VM Z3C “J31ISH 1S ‘asenbs [eAoy €T

xmAZ uopestiddy Bujuueld 00°820} e o1

I'eH ¥V JN
Joyosi4 ———
L R : pue s peal 8q ey L
e, S
. 10 Jousa *Aouedasosip Aue pue a)is uo PaXOBYD 8q O} SUOISUBWIP Y

sauleq
@35@«_50\_& repRe s - §071d'8204 ¥T90 L I I

jr— NoISIAZY ON ONIMYED ava sunananany [ o | o | s

Bumesp siy) woy 81e0s jou 0q BuAdoD 5| Bumesp SIyL

3 a a v

05:
NOILYAST3 LSAM-HLNOS

ndindindiadiadbdEJEJCJE AL L A B e e e e oo A I I e IE e e e e e
i T _ 00ELeTrery
Sjpued Ad ‘0L
uwinjod WWQOYX00y ‘6
007'Ey ot apesjsnjeg sse|9 'g
0566 T 44 Ww()OEX(Y)0SE 149" 18 Yiuild pueg Jaiseld "L
ww()ogx(4)ose 1’44’4 18 Jopiog pueg isiseld 9
9Bl - J9pIOg MOPUIA YOOW pueg 19seld ‘G
|lews - 18p10g MOPUIAA YOO\ pueg ajseld “{
g Inojo) - Jopuady ‘g
' INojoY - Japuay 'z
Jooy aels '}
88L'GY @IeId IIBM- {- -~ A
0GE'9Y BUIBD - - - mmm o mm oo =S
A A
aur A1epunog jse3 yinog 8ur Aiepunog 3sem yHoN
Apadoud BunnoqyBiau Buysixg
05t
V-V NOILO3S
L= == P N e . .
N~ §§§§\§\\§§§ S — » 000ty
< T 00E'LY T4
e woo; u09 punoib »
) NS 0} SUOEPUNO} JO Y1dap § BZIS - SUOREPUNO =
(@)] Bujuiq/usyo wooy Buiar] - I
™ iy
© &3 PUBS WLLS GeIS B19I0UOD WALOS) - GelS E
Q. ‘ ﬂ&/ i
@ N 00t' € [0
NN T XN L XL E LT X | O | 05665 T 44
£ XaUUY 0007 :4-90Z N3 S8 Ul 30Uepioooe
uj uoReayued s, 18anpoid Bl J0 UoNeLUOD
“BUIPEO] U/NY GZ'| - 05°0 1@ Wgg'p Jo ueds L O BU) BPIAOId "D XBULY ‘0002 :1-90Z NI >
iqissiuiad ‘wiog'y Jo ueds xeyy [enjoy ‘Sistof ooy N $8 40 sjuswalINba) Buneaw uoeoyso Aued-piyy 2 N
3U) 40 8PISIPUN 8 0} PXI BUIIED piEogilseld v Z wooipag Buipue ayns-ug wooipag sasep| S B paypas00e JuaLINo Buploy Jueld e woy 1eonposd 3 8
wwg'z) € yim O/ 00 @ sisiof Jooy Jaquin $OS oM : N 3 sa e Aq payddns aq |leys #3e1ou0d paxiw-Apesy 3 s
WWIOZZXG O} PX) SPIEOQ J0OI — 10014 JaquILL 3 3
L | 8825 Sleld llem
BUIT WoolpesH Wz aull uoospesy we
77 . —— 1 058 97 buled
“BUIPEO] /N 050 - 620 18 Wi'e 7 ;
10 ueds ajqissiwiad ‘WQp'g ueds Xew [enoy
A A
aur Azepunog jse3 yuoN aur Aiepunog 3sap yinos
051

NOILVA3T3 LSVI-HINOS

CoCCcCcoC oo o oSS oo oo oo oo 000 oSS oo (Y

00E'Ly 1494

00v'ep o

“““““ 086'€p T334

““““ 88L°GY 9IeId llem,

“““““ 05€°9y Buled

A
sury Asepunog jse3 yioN




Loc
1:1000AL|TY MAP

NN

20833
SRR
NN

NN
AR
.«ﬁ*’?‘&tt’l%ﬁss X
Laey
SRR

< e
X2
PR 200%
SR :
~s-s~s~ AN %}%
\\\\ % \\\g 55
\\N\"@\\ »\5\
»«wss».ss
W \~,\5§\'~
2 %\\N
NN,

&3
3
SRS
z\. 5 QDIZ

&&s‘\s«s
£223 I N
N &3
SN
TN
“2333:{3&&3&&,
s«««»\
AN TN

o >
AR o) 33 R
23 ‘h\N\%’Q-M X N
& w«xw»%s RN AN
e TR
% S AN S NN
X ~§§4§§§§§§§§§'s«s§§*\\§*&§» Ve
SRR --s~«s~ss\~¢~§ \g“\*«“w
f-w.m»«s«««»««\§~ O R
’*’;}‘;‘.""“}&&&&&&t‘\&““ks\ssxxs--
2 7 ""“““"“’&&R\v o n«,ﬁgzgzgg
Ny SN

L22%
SRR
,\;§~§-- X

AN

R
\N\N&N
DR

s»\\iz&x«v
Lo
Y

MH G430

R SSSN
&%&&%&{{f@i&%
\Q\Q\Nﬂ\\\\\\\\\ﬂ\
\x&\\&s\s--s
\\\Q\\&\\
233300

STANP
[ee [om [ om |
o
IENDMENTS B
oATE
DRAWING
No
1028.PL.01

Al
imensions
o

dscrepaney, oo or Son i and
o archtect

This dray
i
ing shal be read in
conjuncto
n

withal ro

Jevant
Irlovant actects
ings and s,,scng:;:-sgmam-

e 1028.00 Planning Appl
licati
fon 2vwx

stATUS
Planni
anning Application

AN

AN
.4§§§~§
BTN

5

ERVARNY
RIS

A2
IR
&
PoR5L LA
SRS
sww,g'
S
22

PROJECT

41-
1-45 Gordon Hill

Fischer

13 Roy
val
S.q}uare. St. Helier,
1534 7331 R

E: mai
ail@a-bef.com
www.a-bef.com



VM 23r ‘J31I3H 1S ‘aenbs [eAoy €T

Joyosi4

Woo'Jog-erew : 3

sue|d J00|4 pasodold ~

FLLIL oNIMVE 23030

1NE_H V 1IN

wam

WY 0S1
v s

uoneoyddy Buiuue|d
snwwis

T 1@ 21895 01 0

II'H uoplo9 Sy-Ty

¥071d'820}

xmA'Z uonesyiddy Bujuueld 00°8Z0 sweu s

suogeaypads pue sbumesp sisauBuR

pue ¢ u0o i e a4 1oy

10SI0sE 3U) o) paiodal LoIsSIWO
10 10113 *AouBdaI0SIp AUE PUE Bifs UO PS03 31 0} SUOISUBWIP IV

Bumesp siu) woy oje0s jou 0q Ao 5 Bumesp siL

~ ¥1'90 onssiBuwwerd | ~| | -
19308d Nolsinzy ON ONImYED aLva SINIWANIWY | YHO | NHa | A3y VLS
[T 3 a a
05l
NV1d ¥00T4 Ls¥ld
» ) : FH L B
~’ @\ 4—\0 ““““““ “‘ “V“\
Y Q\ == o) w.6'0¢ - ANIT AMVANNOS LSVI-HLNOS N I I O 0 O S
= ) <« 2 LT TN
{ 2 ) < 3 < HHHHHEHHHHH
L L ., A L H HEH @
3 / - \ 1 ] L] pagigig gl vaNplipiotgl
el < C ishe g C E elnly piplninliniinii-iatmlleinsnl
“BUIPEO| W/NY §2°L - 0G°0 JE Wgg'y 40 Ueds SO LIOTPEsH W2 N 15 [ [ HHH Y L =
aiqissiuad ‘wog'p J0 Ueds Xey [Enoy “sisiof Jool H i | o L 0 O I
34} J0 PISIGPUN BU) O} POXY 83 E () [ Sk, L I I I O [ B I
WWIS'Z) & G 0/0°00% ® SISIol 400y BqW $OS o . H e LICIL CL i I I I O L L
WWOZZXG ikt Poxy SPIEOQ J00|4 — 1004 JaquulL LM/ WL E) - eale [euwlpiu| S
nm N A~ € wooupag L \\\\\\\W\\\\\\! uipinipipigticipintininini
L o, - [ | [ Buined Bus L W\\\\\ HHH
) X @ 1 % (M0o0bz -@slolsueuial | | | W I O \\\\.km
Q < % [euozuoy i) WZZ'9 s Sl 1 H CL L L T BT \\\\L‘
o. y10g Je Aiuoseyy 1o Jepopy 10y eds Z-866 ©eale [eusaju| %) . § Ld L
\ < O N3 S8 01 JeLow Joke) Uiy ] @eMewLBY L WO} \IeH i O0'YZ - BOlE [EUiB]  Ino ennnyBRERAR pPyEnlinEniy! ninEeEnls
L | &J X Jeyop A wooupag Jajse kﬁ\\\\\\\\\\\\\‘ww \Ak\\\\\\\\\ L L L
= L VA . PRGBSI WILIG'Z] LM SIOMPMIS JBGUILL WLIOOH 8 lululu_. m [ g [ 0 o I O L L
I s ) o), (10014 3114) SlIEM [ewseIu] [ 3 S Il \MW mEnEE nEnEnEnlw
H ) A o . (v) - E NEpER=N=R=tE=NE S TH O HRH
[ /%\n x%g‘ugccd_ﬁ:»ai A7 = — H HHHHHH HH H ™
S ~ w/BN0LYy °oq S i HHH = HH —H H
H o ‘\ @m«y (H)S12 X (Nopy - su H1§8LL - BOUE [BUIRIUI ® o O o O e o I I e I L
;, IOM01q OGN L @ ~ Z wooupag o Buifed Bunsixe pueixy I I
L =) - UO UONEINSUI M PIOIYSHOOY [0OMNO0Y WWO0L i 8% X (MO0 - suoisuswiq Y O I O
o i EVA / o siieMm [eussix3 H% — | | Aeg Buppied G
=) 3 ( 0 Ll 0 O
< I : , 1k « HHHHHH
ol | anan < 8 o R & HH]
L / 2 y o LT
© <, (S < |z B
a) ~ = <% =B % E 5
i 7 e e— o 3
/ W/0/°0¢ - SN ANVANNOT ISIWHINON — > ———— =z _ 2
iy © HO'L 491 ~ > - =
0t
NV1d 40074 ANNO¥D
W, Y N E HHHHHH — H Yot
o Y e HHHHHHIEHHHAT
< 0066 - eoie o) W0.L6°0¢ - ANIT AYVANNOS LSVI-HLNOS N L LT LN
aoeds Muswy = ) 3 I I O LEIN L L
S X N < 3 < ] Ay N O |
( ) 3 = I O L e H
N N 0. X n\n 20
zﬁﬁuv \ uopENASUOD qels \ H - e H H HHH Y Lo} Hel |
z . Q& ©1210U00 PIS WM Haf1-003 L e ) - 'G9Z BaIY 10Ic mv\mrT\\\ H A A A AE A &\iW\‘
) BisNwoZ - “wy qeo|, { 7 L - T
MR o Y ) wovzooke L-violeloL T HHHHHHEBHH
wu(1)00} X(100v2 aw ym 3jioq seb Buisapuod ) | Agor N_| ~ I HHHHelH B YA HHHHHH I i
i d Bugealy Joopepun ™ 1UBID8YD %E06 € 0} UOISIAOId = 10 e H e EH e = HHAH
; - U0 sBUIE WNIUIWN(E USAOM PP ) P = HHHHH M —HHH HF
! 5§umum.ﬁsmsi.&wﬁéﬂgms_&u > Sl (NN | 22NN 24— g - Iy O A I I I |
HIT293 wisy 1003 - uopemsuy 400y FBulet do I HEHHHHH S g
Qgwimoro - Aonpuod fewsens A = || Bued Guisxd L0 NHHHHHEHHHH
, N v 1o0ve -Giobusita | | Snlipipiplinll-Inlglplinl>1
L X one|nsu] axewed w96 - ease [elueyu 21qEsIp 10, L I I I O LU L e
7 uopeinsu| ) 1eH T I Hi HHHHH H HHHHE
B 5 50/ \rlﬂlk\kl HHHHH H HHHHH
L] AW0G'/ | - eale aygoz-eeejewa | ||| W[ AT ARSI T | | sl Ll LT Lt
T [ yalod wooybuiary LAl N AL ] Y A s~ I I O I O L e
L ‘Sjulof [EOIOA 3 [EjuOZUOY WG| KT - BOIR [BUIBIU| L L Lol L L L 1L L
il = 110q e Auose|\ 10j JELOW 0} SUOEILISS Z-866 Buwguevwoyy [ i . = YTttt e L L LT
< N S8 0} JeHow Joke| UYL @INRULBYL WWOL. <x
H = i | (@ ySR=asatutisnc] = HHHEH HH A
il __ — _— — sinlnlnlnls mlnlnlE
i - \_égvﬁ_ 7 N N L
| kX (10014 punoi9) sjjem |eulajul m U u_w i Buiqed Bunsixe ucw_xM/ T L
H 2 SHWIMLL'0 - AARNpUOD [ewsiey ). o 7)0ds X ( oqwxm:u_mw:wsﬁ_ HHHHHH
ol o w/BN0LY - Ausueq Do — | Aeg Bupjieq HHHHHH
o o (&) EEEQ?xfvm_mx..ﬂ.oqv.mz%zms_o £ = H = HHHH
= e N | Igiglizigish
< UO UONBINSUI W PIRIYSHIFE I00M{I0Y W00 L & L 0 O
L | 4 /| i ( & ®sjieMm [euioixg FHHEE | L
I RO | - - 7 . HHHHHHHH pipipliy
H A 2 ‘ 9 pigiply
L 3 < = % [ B A
I 4 o 5 = < 4 =8 % K ,
H A
H / W/0/°0¢ - SN ANVANNOT ISIWHINON —>———— =z _ B
na1e \ Loe X = o) HO'L 491 -~ > ~ —
= 3 ! a ” ! @ ”










n,unn«-«u-.\\_\\




bane bd Agendetten 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

. »qth -
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 28" April 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Southgate
Planning, Highways & Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Transportation Mr Richard Laws 020 8379 3605
Ref: 14/04772/HOU Category: Householder

LOCATION: 68 Meadway, London, N14 6NH,

PROPOSAL: Minor material amendment TP/11/1824 (part single, part 2-storeys side and
rear extension involving demolition of existing garage) to allow relocation and increase in
height of rear roof lanterns, new ground floor single door to rear, new timber windows to
front elevation, amendment to design of kitchen and dining area doors and windows,
aluminium windows to side and rear in new extension and minor other changes.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mrs Helen Poli Mr George Athanasi
68 Meadway Southgate Office Village
London Block E First Floor
N14 6NH 286A Chase Road
United Kingdom London

N14 6HF

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Note for Members:

The application would normally be dealt with under delegated powers, however the last application
approved went to Planning Committee as the applicant is council employee and for consistency
this application is also reported.




Page 54

Ref: 14/04772/HOU LOCATION: 68 Meadway, London, N14 6NH,

el

Pl

L
2

P!

L
<

o

W

>
North

P!

el
L
*
s

e
e,
A

.

<

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

3.2

4.
4.1

41.1

Page 55

Site and Surroundings

The property is a two storey semi detached dwelling situated in close
proximity to the junction of Meadway/ High Street (Southgate). The property is
externally finished in a white pebble dash render with a brick base course up
to the lower ground floor windows. A detached garage structure is located just
to the rear of the property, positioned on the side adjoining No.70 Meadway.
The property also benefits from a large rear garden.

The surrounding are is residential in character and falls within Meadway
Conservation Area.

Proposal

Planning permission for a part single, part two storey side and rear extension
to the property was previously approved under Planning Ref: TP/11/1824.
This permission still remains valid until 5" July 2015. This proposal involves
some minor material amendments to the scheme previously approved.

The proposed first floor rear element extends 2.1m beyond the rear building
line of the property and is inset 3.4m away from the side boundary with No.
66 The Meadway. The proposed first floor rear element extends 1.6m beyond
the rear building line of number 70 Meadway.

With regards the single storey side and rear elements of the extension, the
single storey rear extension is 3m in depth on the side adjoining No. 66 for a
width of 3.4m and then extends out to a depth of 5m for a width of 4.8m. The
single storey rear element is 3.2m high .The single storey rear element
beyond No. 70 (4.8m in depth) is inset 1m away from the boundary, with the
rest of the side extension element before this abutting the boundary. The first
floor side element adjoining Number 70 the Medway is inset on average 1m
from the boundary and extends for a length of approximately13.2m.

The key minor material amendments to the scheme involve the increase in
the size, width and height of the rear roof lanterns on the approved single
storey extension, a new rear door, aluminium windows to the rear and side
flank elevation, new timber framed windows on the front elevation, alteration
to size and design of side flank windows, facade boundary wall amended in
width, fagade garage roof pitch amended are the main changes. There a few
other minor changes which are of no material significance.

Relevant Planning Decisions
TP11/1824 Part single, part two storey side extension with integral garage
and part single part two rear extension involving demolition of existing

garage- Approved 5/6/12.

TP/14/04537/CND- Details pursuant to condition (6) roof lights and condition
condition (7) chimneys of TP/11/1824. Approved

Consultation
Statutory and Non Statutory consultees

Conservation Officer




4.1.2

4.2

42.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 56

No objections in principle to the proposed minor material amendments. Ideally
would wish to see timber framed windows to match to the flank elevations, in
addition to the main facade. However, on balance accept the proposal for
aluminium frames. The slime line roof lanterns to the rear extension and new
roof light to the rear roof slope are sited to the rear of the building will not
impact on the surrounding Conservation Area. Recommend that that bricks,
brick bond and motor to the chimney are conditioned to match existing.

Conservation Advisory Group

The Group was asked to consider the proposed minor material amendments
to a previously approved scheme TP/11/1824. On balance, it was not felt the
amendments, including alterations of the approved windows and from timber
to aluminium on the flank and rear elevations, would not unduly impact on the
character and appearance of the Meadway Conservation Area. They
supported the use of timber framed double glazed windows on the front
elevation. It was also suggested that the works to the existing chimney stacks
should be conditioned to match exiting in terms of brick type brick bond and
mortar. No objection

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 5 neighbouring properties. In addition a site
notice was displayed at the site and the application was also advertised in the
local press. Two letters were received raising the following points;

Extension too close to boundary

Object to extension coming up to boundary

Asbestos on garage must be properly removed

Windows on side flank must be obscured glazed

Slim line roof lanterns would be unsightly

Change of materials for the windows, and patio doors from timber to
aluminium out of keeping

Relevant Policy

London Plan (FALP March 2015)

Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.6 Architecture
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets & archaeology

Core Strateqgy

CP30- Maintaining & Improving Quality of built environment
CP31- Built and Landscape Heritage

Development Management Document

DMD11- Rear extensions
DMD14- Side extensions
DMD37- Achieving high quality & design led development



5.4

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Page 57

DMD44- Preserving and enhancing heritage assets

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Medway Conservation Area Character Appraisal

Analysis

Principle

The principle of the extensions has already been approved under planning
reference TP/11/1824 and this permission still currently remains valid. The
main issues of consideration are therefore whether the minor material
amendments to the scheme would have any greater impact on the character
and appearance of the Conservation Area or adversely impact on the
residential amenities of the two adjoining neighbours.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area

The property lies within Meadway Conservation Area, within the associated
Character Appraisal the property is identified as a building which contributes
to the special interest of the area. The main issue of consideration is therefore
whether the proposed minor material changes would still preserve and
enhance the character and appearance of the property and conservation area

The principal of the impact of the part single/ part two storey side and rear
extension on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area in terms
of still preserving and enhancing its appearance has previously accepted
through the granting of the existing permission. Furthermore, whilst the gap
would be in filled at the side adjoining No. 70 The Meadway, the first floor
element would still be inset 1m from the common boundary in accordance
with Policy DMD 14 of the Development Management Document to avoid a
terracing effect. It is therefore considered that the general design and
appearance of the extension would satisfactorily integrate into the street
scene and would not impact on the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area having regard to Policies (II) C30, CP 31 as well as having
regard to the National Planning Policy Framework as well as DMD44 of the
Development Management Document

With regards the two existing chimneys on the side elevation, these are now
retained, extended and incorporated within the development to help retain the
character of the property. The roof lights on the side flank elevation are to be
heritage style roof lights. With regards to the increase in the size and height of
the two rear roof lanterns on the proposed single storey rear extension, it is
considered that these would not adversely impact on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area, being situated to the rear. There is no
objection to the proposed new double glazed timber windows proposed on
the front elevation. In terms of the side flank elevation and rear elevation of
the extension, these are to be aluminium windows. Both the Conservation
Advisory Group and the Conservation Officer on balance felt that the
amendments, including alterations of the approved windows from timber to
aluminium on the flank and rear elevations would not unduly impact on the
character and appearance of the Meadway Conservation Area. The other



6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

Page 58

minor changes would have no greater significant impact than those previously
approved.

Impact on Neighbouring properties

With regards to the impact of the ground floor rear element of the extension
on No 66 Meadway, this is 3m in depth on the boundary for a width of 3.4m
before extending out in depth to 5m. The height of the extension is 3.2m. No.
66 Medway has no extension immediately adjoining the boundary and
therefore the main consideration is the impact of the extension on the
residential amenities of this property having regard to Development
Management Document Policy DMD 11. The depth of the extension on the
side adjoining number 66 The Meadway would comply with DMD11. The
deeper element of the extension at 5m is set 3.4m away from the boundary
and therefore would not have any effect on residential amenity.

In terms of the impact of the first floor rear extension on No 66 Meadway this
element is 2.1m deep but is inset from the common boundary by 3.4m. Given
the separation, a 30 degree line would not be breached from the nearest first
floor window. Accordingly, it is considered that the depth and siting of the first
floor element would not adversely impact on the residential amenities of this
property having regard to Development Management Document Policy
DMD11 and CP 30 of the Core Strategy.

With regards the impact of the proposed extensions on No 70. Meadway, this
property has 3 windows at first floor level on its side flank elevation (hallway,
bathroom, and bedroom) and two windows at ground floor (kitchen & toilet). It
should be noted that the kitchen window is not the sole source of light for this
room.

In terms of the two storey side/ rear element, the first element is inset 1m
from the common boundary which in addition to complying with DMD14 also
ensures adequate separation to the flank of this neighbouring property.
Furthermore, a 30 degree line would not be breached by the first floor rear
projecting element of the extension from the nearest first floor rear window
having regard to DMD11. It is considered therefore that the first floor element
would not adversely impact on the existing side flank windows of No 70.

With regards the impact of the proposed single storey side/ rear element of
the extension on No 70, this element is partly sited on the common boundary
but where it projects beyond the rear main wall of No.70, itis inset by 1
metres for its entire depth of 4.5 metres. To facilitate this element, an
existing detached garage sited adjoining the boundary is to be removed to
facilitate the extension. This existing garage is 3m in height to the pitch of the
roof and 2.45m to its eaves and is 5m in depth and establishes a base line in
terms of the effect on existing levels of residential amenity. In other words, the
new ground floor rear element on this side replaces the existing garage and
the main focus must focus on any additional effect arising from a greater
height or depth of that now proposed,

The new extension element is slightly less in depth by approx 800mm and
also set slightly further away from the boundary. However, the height of the
single storey element is 3.2m and therefore 200mm higher than the maximum
height of the existing garage at 3 metres. To offset this additional height, the
extension has been inset the 1 metres from the boundary and on balance, it is



6.3.7

6.3.8

6.4

6.4.1

7.1

8.1

Page 59

considered that the siting of the extension slightly further from the boundary
allows for this additional increase in height. It is therefore considered that the
siting, depth and height of the extension would not have a significantly
greater impact on the residential amenities of this property given the existing
garage which is to be removed.

That part of the side extension positioned on the boundary at 3.2. metres in
height is considered to be acceptable and would not unduly impact on the
light and outlook available to the exiting ground floor windows.

In terms of the minor changes the proposed the increased height and size of
the rear roof lanterns on the proposed single storey rear element are not
considered to have any adverse impact on the adjoining neighbours. The new
rear door is also not considered to have any impact on 70 The Meadway. No
objections are raised in design terms to the new wood windows on the front or
the proposed aluminium windows on the side and rear elevation. Whilst two of
the side flank windows on the side flank elevation are increased in size, these
serve non habitable rooms and are to be obscured glazed, the third window is
a high level bedroom window so as to protect privacy as originally approved.
There is no objection to the slight change in pitch of the garage roof.

Parking

The proposal still provides two parking spaces: one within the proposed new
garage and one on the existing hard standing driveway in front of the garage.
The proposed extensions therefore, would not give rise to an increase in on
street parking having regard to Policy 6.13 of the London Plan which relates to
parking provision.

Conclusion

The proposed minor material changes to the existing approved scheme are
not considered to adversely impact on the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area or adversely impact on the residential amenities of the two
adjoining neighbours. In conclusion approval is accordingly recommended.

Recommendation
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

C60  Approved Drawings

C24  Obscured Glazing- Two side flank non habitable windows
C25 No additional fenestration

C26 Restriction on extension roofs

The proposed roof lights on the side flank elevation shall be heritage
conservation roof lights.

Reason: In order to ensure the design roof lights are sympathetic to
the Conservation Area.

arwnpE

6. The works to extend the exiting chimney stacks shall match in terms of
of bricks, brick bonds and mortar.
Reason : In order to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation area.



Page 60

7. The development shall commence on or before the 5" July 2015

Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 51 of the Planning
And Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.



$3S0ddNd NOILONYLSNOD
HO4 d3sN 38 OL SONIMYHA 9. SNLVLS ATNO

“UOIONIISUOD 1O} UORONISUL
J1apun panssi sbumesp padojanap AjIn4 - NOILONHLISNOO 9

uoneolyoads B
s|iejop s Josuibus
[einjonus sad se
- uonepuNo} MaN

“oje Bul||iq ‘siepus) ‘speroidde
Joy sBumesp uBisap [euy Buijors - ININJOTIAIA NDIS3A 8

0}e ‘sjebpnq ‘sjesodoud Joj sBuimelp swayog/euRNO - IWIHOS V
‘SNLVLS ONIMVHA

EmrSaoO@ 31IS NO d3X03HD 38 OL SNOISNIWIA TV
"ONIMYHA SIHL 3TvOS LON Od
Sy Sl L1yl
oY ‘oN Bumeig “ON 108loid
O3 VI0ZISTONY [ 8V @ 021 8 00K ﬂ
Ag umelq| aleq 3Jeog|

0c:} 31vOS

11vV13a TTYM a343AdN3Y TVL3A TIVM a343aN3d

ANV NOILVATT3 dv3d d3sOd0odd

8L bumelq

HN9 ¥IN NOANOT ‘AVMAVIN 89 'ON
OL1 NOISN3LX3 "v3d ¥ 3dIS
ATHOLS OML 1HVd ‘I1ONIS LHVd

109014

Bunsixe yoyew

o 0] SH00!
Ja1se(d ysiuy 2 uopuo] 30__v_m> _m
I010B1UOD UlR NN 8ISy | wwg g R MIOMYOLIG MON
IBMPIEH dpsiyL = ’
wnsdA9 ysnug A
WWEE s
ITOd SHIN 8 HIN X
— R ol Aefo pey ne o

"PappE [IB18P |[EM JopUSI PUE DAJN O} Papuswe M
siopnb g sadid Jeyem ures teay : 69 1 |1'60°8) | LY -UOISIASY o

NOILLVAIT3 HV3H d3S0dodd

‘PapUBWE JOOI S,UOISUBIXS BpIS T

pue sadid Juen [10S B Jejem urel Joop oned B SMOpUIM ‘|ielep
Ilem paispual ‘ZoY 8 H0Y SWbIooy : B8 i L°0L°e Y -iuoIsiney
“POppE &Ny} J9jloq pue

Bunsixe yoyew
0} ayym pajured
>10M¥00]|q palapual

11sIxe yojew o}
S}00}S UOPUOT MOJ[BA Ul

UoE|NSUI [00MY00Y B iovbolG MoN

yum Aneo

rale Buluip/uayoly 0} J00( ‘pepuswe Joop oned pue 2oy B LOH nj wwosg usep 8jqqed

s1ybIjjoos ‘sejou JyBII00I B MOPUIM : B8 ¥ L0 b1 ‘€Y -UoISIAeY - - OAdN 08I Ul | OAdN 081G Ul
— ue sejou sjybijj00s 1 Japus! .u.mwwm.n;—m.o_ﬁm%.__m\s..ﬂmc_,mwwm_ adid Jojem adid sajem OAdN X2e.[q ul 7
(o) P HOIHOO1 B 19pUSY + b8 - Rl ._.umn:.mEmm ures meN 7 ures maN slapnb maN

uoisua)xe Jeas 0} Joos payod 3 uoeas|s Jeas pasodoid
@psppe uoisusixs 100y pUNoib au} 40 1YBIAY 3 UOISUSIXS 00} 1811

) 0} aull Alepunog wiolj suoisusWIq : %S G106} ‘G -1UOISINaY OAdN Xoe|q ul
@ inoopeeBob 3 6990 9888 020 4 001 9888 020 L adid Jarem
Bunsixe yorew o} = ures meN

[a B 4H9 ¥ LN ‘UopuoT ‘peoy 8sey) vose 8lym 3 Xoelq Ul

110014 38114 ‘3 3o0ig ‘@BelliA 8940 Srebuinos
ubisa@ pue ainoaYaIy V15

D

MeWMP' | O (MN) dnjea-n

anaiyoe 0} pue Aaib ae|s ul Jeq Buize|b pue
sa|yold [eusaxa yum ‘ybly wwgzoL pue
apIm wWws9s ‘pabuly doy ‘paze|b s|gnop aq
o} Jejwis 1o Auedwo) ybiyooy eyl wouy
MOPUIAN JOOY UOIBAISSUOD OU | MaN :20Y

MW/MP L

1o (Mn) anjea-n anaiyoe o} pue Aalb ajels

ul Jeq Buize|b pue sajyold [eusalxe yim
‘YBIY WwGzs pue epim wwzol ‘pabuly

doy ‘paze|b 8|qnop oq o} ‘¢/L-HO Jou “rejiwis
1o Auedwo) 1yBijooy 8y Wol) SMOPUIAL
JooyY uoleAIasuO) s'ou  MaN :90H-E0H

MW/M 0}

jo (Mn) enjea-n Buinsiyoe Buize|b sjgnop
sse|b Jes|o buiues|) J|os +xaley yim pue
Buiddeo [eulexe pue puesdn pajeibaiul
wnjujwnle payeod Japmod Jalsakjod ajgeinp
Ka1b sje|s yum apim wwooz L pue buoj
wwpo0z &9 0} ‘fejiuis 1o (90208680610
‘|8y) Sse|n) xa|jey Wolj suisjue]

J00Y 8uljwi|S s*ou g meN :g0d-10d
:spybijyooy

‘ubisep pue |elsrew
ul Bunsixe yoyew o} s|1o Mau |y

‘lelisrew

Ul jou Ing ‘BunsIxe yoyew o} 8jYM pue 3oe|q
Ul paze|Bb 8|qnop ag 0} SMOPUIM MaU ||y
ISMOPUIM

*310N

J00p wniuiwnfe paze|b

jipsEzszizy

Ainy g e1anop meN

Bunsixe yoyew o}

elIyM puE Xoe|q Ul
MOPUIM Wniuiwnfe
poze| a|qnop maN

Bunsixe yoyew o}
a)ym pajuted y1omx00|q
paJapual ysep ojqgqad

Bunsixe yoyew o}
elyM pue Xoe|q Ul

any _m__om\ﬂ
|

wwoootk

MOPUIM WNUIWNfe
pazelb ajgnop maN

Bunsixe yorew o}
sa|ly Aejo ul
joou payoud maN

OAdN oe|q ul
adid juan |los maN

's0}sagse aq 0} punoj ji
1sijeloads Aq panowal
aq 0} anjj Bunsixg
‘Bunsixe yoyew o}
ubisap g syouq

- papuaixa aq 0}
sAauwiyo Bunsixgy

- N

B

{7

’ wwooze

=

OAdN X2e|q ul
slapnb maN

Bunsixa yoyew
01 sa| Aejo ul
Joos payoyd maN

smopuim g Joop oljed
wnjuiwnfe paze|b
a|gnop maN

Bunsixa yoyew o}
auym pajured
3JI0M00]q paJapual
usep e|qged

sybi1| Joos maN

jooi yeyy ojuo Buibreyosip
OAdN >oe|q ul
adid Jeyem urel maN

Bunsixa yoyew oy
alym pue 3oe|q ul
MOPUIM WinjuiwNfe

paze|6 s|gnop maN

Wb Joo1 meN



$3S0ddNd NOILONYLSNOD
HO4 d3sN 38 OL SONIMYHA 9. SNLVLS ATNO

“UOIONIISUOD 1O} UORONISUL

Japun panss! sbumelp padojerap A|In4 - NOILONYLSNOD 9
“oje Buijliq ‘siepua} ‘sencidde

Joy sBumesp uBisap [euy Buijors - ININJOTIAIA NDIS3A 8
0} ‘sjebpnq ‘sjesodoud 1oy sBuimelp swaydg/eUINO - INIHOS YV
‘SNLVLS ONIMVHA 1 |
E?ES@ 311S NO a3x¥03HO 39 OL SNOISNIWIA TV Ne L 0
"ONIMYHA SIHL 3TvOS LON Od

6Y 9l Jivl NOILVA313 34IS a3s0d0odd
A8y ‘oN Buimelq “oN 100l01d
RE| ¥10z 1snbny | €V ® 02+ 8 001 H
Ag umeiq aeq 9[eog
11v13a AINNIHO Bunsixe
ANV NOILYAIT3 3dIS d3s0d0odd yojew o}
8L bumelq Bunsixe a)ym pajured OAdn
Yolew o} $Y001 9|l HI0M300|q oe|q Ul pooy OAdN 30E|q Ul
UuOpuOT MOJ|SA Ul ue} JojoeIIXS palepual  paAowsal 8q 0} adid Jerem Jojoelixe adid Jayem
HN9 LN NOANOT ‘AVMAvaN 89 "'ON Ylomouq menN eisipiwuny eny} Jejlog ysep e|qqed ajeb bunsixg ufel meN ures meN
OL NOISN3.1X3 dv3d ® 3dIS
AJHOLS OML 1dVd 'F1ONIS LHVd

109014

sojsagse aq 0}
e e et et et e e e e e e e i e e i s punoy Ji isijeoads Aq
“1 paysijowsp aq o}
~—— obelseb bunsixg

OAdN Xoe|q ul
adid Jerem
ueimen " - la

J0J0BIUOD Ul

Bunsixa yoyew o}
a|ym payured
I0MX00]|q paJapual
ysep 8|qqed

wuwooce

10d SHN B HIN

Juai)|

Bunsixe yojew o}

"OAdn 0} papuswe son Aejo ul

s190n6 g sodid Jslem ufel Jeay : 69 1| '60'8L : LY -UOISINOY 400l payond meN

“papuswie Jool payold s,uoisuslxe apis ) DOAdN XoE|q Ul

Joojy punoib pue suoneasje Jeas @ apis 0} sadid JuanA [10s B Jojem adid Jo1em

UIel ‘UONIBASIS SPIS O} SMOPUIM MU “UONIBASIS JUO} O} MOPUIM Bunsixe Yolew o} ures meN
Bunsixe ‘0 % L0 SIUBI joo mm ‘PHOL'E 12V -IUOISInaY elym pajured 310myo0]q .

papusawe goY B L0Y Syl 001 pue uonedo| sanj palapual ysep s|qged
Lw__o‘,.\_,.m.mu.ur_Em_coc_vm\,>o_ur__>>”mm.i.o—.iun<

ﬂ
wuwooee

sybl| joos maN

nys paxij ‘Bunsixa yojew o}
S1IYM @ B[] Ul SMOPUIM
wniuiwnfe pazelf ajgnop

sse|b 21ndsqo meN

N ... ‘pepusue Bunsixa yoyew o}

o sajou slybIYo0. B JopuaY : B8 17| '01 82 PV -UOISIAeY allym pue xoe|q ul Bunsixe yorew
‘pappe sjou mopuim paze|6 ajgnop 0} a)IyM % oe|q ul

Q@ feuwiyo g penIwo Ly-pY SASH : B2 :5L°20°LL BV -iUOIsInaY pawely Jaquin MaN MOPUIM Wnjuiwnfe

[@)) ‘papuswWe UoISUs}Xe Jeal 0o punoib paze|b ajgnop meN

'8 UOISUSIX® JEB) 100} }Sil} O} JOOI PAUDIId POPPE UOISUSIXS
(O 1ea1 100} pUNOIB O} SUOISUBWIQ : %S G L'Z0°6 - ‘Y ~-UOISINaH

Q. nooperBeb3 6990 9888 020 4 001G 9888 020 L sieounb QAdn OBl
4H9 ¥ LN ‘UopuoT ‘peoy 8sey) V982
‘10014 18114 ‘3 oolg ‘ebelii 20 erebuinos
ubjsag pue ainjoa)yoly v1o

'so}saqse aq 0} punoj Ji
1sljeoads Aq paaowal
aq o} an|} Bunsixg

7 “Bunsixe yoyew o}
ubisap % sxouq
g MWMP' | O (Mn) enjea-n - pepus)xa 8q 0}
anaIyoe 0} pue Aaib aje|s ul Jeq Buize|b pue OAdN Eamsa=s Ksuwiyo Bunsixg
sayjoid _NEQ% cﬁs ‘yby E%mNS pue mﬁv__m_mﬁmum e
opim wws9s ‘pabuly doy ‘paze|b sjgnop aq ¥ .
0} Jejuwis 10 Auedwion 1ybijooy 8yl wody B [10S MON Bunsixs yojew oy ubisep
MOPUIA JOOYH UOIIBAIBSUOD “OU | MaN :20H pue Jeyouw m:_u:o.n 3oug
. . 1IsIxe yorew Bunsixe yoyew Bunsixs yoyew ‘310N
10 (1)) BN[BA-N BASIYOE 0} puE MM_\‘__W_W\R,«M_M 0} saji} Aepo ul o} sa|i Aepo Ui uej I0JORIIXS 01 sa|i Aejo Ul 021 31v0S
Ul 184 BUIZBIB pue Sopold [BuleN® U Joo1 payond maN jJoou payoud meN Jelsiplwny  joos payond maN TIvL3ad AINWIHD
‘ybly WWGegg pue spim wiwLzok ‘pabuly - T ] C
doy ‘paze|b ajgnop 8q o} ‘g/L-HO ‘Jo ‘Jejiwis ] I I T
Jo Auedwo) 1yBIjo0Y 8y WOl SMOPUIM Buysixa yorew o} panows. aq o} I I
JO0Y uoleAIBsSUOD S'OU 7 MaN -90H-€0H ubisap 3 syolq adid jusn
- papualxe eq 01 Jios Bunsixg H_ I I | _H
MW/M 0k Rsuwiyo Bunsixg I I
jo (Mn) enfea-n Buinaiyoe Buizelb sjgnop O] Il Tl ]
sse|b Jes|o buiues|) J|as +xaley yim pue I I I
Buiddeo [eulsixe pue puejsdn payeibaiul
wnjujwne pajeod Japmod Ja)sahjod ajgeinp L I[ I[ L
Ka1b ayels yum spim wwooz | pue Buol s¥oua poy o I[ I[ I
wwpo0z 8q o} ‘fejiwis 10 (90208680610 i ] Il I I
‘[8}) SSE|D X8|}oy WOy sulsjue] Il I I
J00Y 8uljwl|S s*ou g MeN ‘g0d-10d
:sjubiooy L T I[ , I , 1L
{TTTTT1]
u| BuisIxe yojew oy s||1o mau ||y

so| Aejo pey >

‘leuayew ul wv_o_hnuwm\'_ : : __ : : __ : 7

10U INq ‘BupsIXe Yoyew O} 8jYM pue 3oe|q
u| paze|b a|gnop aq 0} SMOPUIM MaU ||y
ISMOPU|M

‘310N



(@)}

$3S0ddNd NOILONYLSNOD
HO4 d3sN 38 OL SONIMYHA 9. SNLVLS ATNO

“UOIONIISUOD 1O} UORONISUL
J1apun panssi sbumesp padojanap AjIn4 - NOILONHLISNOO 9

“oje Bul||iq ‘siepus) ‘speroidde
Joy sBumesp uBisap [euy Buijors - ININJOTIAIA NDIS3A 8

0} ‘sjebpnq ‘sjesodoud 1oy sBuimelp swaydg/eUINO - INIHOS YV
‘SNLVLS ONIMVHA

EmrSuoO@ 31IS NO d3X03HD 38 OL SNOISNIWIA TV
"ONIMYHA SIHL 3TvOS LON Od

Sy vl L1yl

oY ‘oN Bumeig “ON 108loid

RE] ¥10¢ 1Snbny €Y @ 00} 1

Ag umelq| aleq 3Jeog|

NOILVATT3 LNOHd d3sOd0odd

8L bumelq

HN9 ¥IN NOANOT ‘AVMAVIN 89 'ON
OL1 NOISN3LX3 "v3d ¥ 3dIS
ATHOLS OML 1HVd ‘I1ONIS LHVd

109014

J0J0BIUOD Ul

10d SHN B HIN

Juai)|

‘papusWeE SMopuIm

Bunsixe @ mau pue loop abeled ‘siepnb pue sadid ieyem

UfeJ ‘Uoisudixa apis 0} |[lem Buiuielay : B9 110 L'E | LY -UOISIAeY
‘pappE anj} 19]10g PIPUSWIE 9ZAM MOPUIM

pue saj0u 1YBIIJ00I @ MOPUIM : B3 ¥ L°0L b1 gV ~UoISIASY
‘pappe adid JUSA [9A8] MO ‘PEPUSWE OEM B 9ZM SMOPUIM

PUE S8J0U 9ZM MOpUIM B JopUaY : B9 i¥|°0L'82 ‘€Y -UoISiAeY
‘papusuwe joos abesed

(Q¥)Phode opede; g abeseb ay 0} Jooy : Ba :G1°20°L} bV -iUOISINeY
) ‘papuswe

100} 1811} BY} O} J0O PAYDlId "POPPE UOISUSIXS I0O]} 1S1l) MaU
0} aul] A1epunog woyy uoIsuBWIQ : %S :G1°20°6 L GV ~UOISIAeY
<) yn-0o'peelb®6 3 6990 9888 020 4 00+S 9888 020 L
I 4H9 VLN ‘uopuoT ‘peoY 8seyd v98e
o 10014 15114 ‘T %00Ig ‘9BEIA SO0 BleBuINos

ubBiseq@ pue aino8yyaIy V1o

=D

‘ublsap pue [elerew
Ul Bunsixe yoyew o} S||1o Mau ||y

‘lelarew
urjou Ing ‘Bunsixe Yoyew o} BHYM pue yoe|q
ul peze|b 8|qnop &g 0} SMOPUIM MaU ||y
ISMOPUIM

‘310N

Bunsixa yoyew o}
allym pue >oejq pajured
Mopuim paze|b ejgnop

9

9

| S—

WNe 3

0

NOILVATT3 LNOHd4 d3S0dOdd

urewsi o}
uni |ios Jo} Bunsixe yojew o}
adid Juen  auym pue xoe|q peiured
|oA8] mo|  smopuim pazelb ajgnop
Buysixg pawel} Jaquin MaN

89

llem oy poob
oyew g adid
uen g
anoway

pawely Jaquiiy MaN

Bunsixe yorew o}

ajym pue oelq pajured

Mopuim paze|b ajgnop

palely Jaguil} Mau [elsul ®
SMOpUIM 8pedR) Yyojew o}
Buiuado palemo| pue yipim awes
a]ea.0 9 MOPUIM BAOWSY

jood payoud
paj Aejo Bunsix3

OAdN 3oe|q
ul adid 1ayem
ures Bunsixgy

OAdN Xoe|q Ul
Jaunb Bunsixg

AR
HHH HHHHHHU‘E‘E’% o

Bunsixe yolew oy
Sllym pue xoe|q
pajured mopuim

Bunsixe yoyew
0} sy} Ae|o ul
joou payond maN

Bunsixe
yolew o}
sa|i} Aejo ui Joos
payond meN
0L
OAdn >oe|q ul
1 adid Jerem
ures maN
1 a ajym pajured
be.eb
| =] ) B
[elow MaN OAdP
X9e|q ul
18unb maN
Joou payond ojuo
Buibreyosip
— any} Jajiog OAdN 2e|(q ul
adid Jeyem
ures maN
/ 3
uiSIXe yojew o}
wiwoee alym pajured
MIomyo0|q paispual
ysep s|qged
OAdN >2e|(q ul
Jannb maN

Bunsixe yoyew oy
sa|1} Aejo ul joou
payond meN

OAdnN oe|q ul adid
JUBA B |I0S MBN

sojsagse
8q 0} puno} ji
1sljeoads

Aqg panowal

aqg o} any} Bunsixg
"Bunsixe yoyew o}
ubBisep g syouq

- papuaixa aq 0}
Asuwiyo Bunsixg

paze|b a|gnop
pawe.} Jaqui} MaN



EmiaoO@

$3S0dHNd NOILONYLSNOO
HO4 @3sn 38 OL SONIMYHA . SNLVLS AINO

UOONISUOD 1O} UoKINLISUI
J1epun penssi sbumelp padojenap Ajind - NOILONYLSNOD 9

‘siopus) ‘s[enoidde
o4 mm:_\sﬁ‘_u ubisep euy buinoA3 - INIWOTIAIA NDIS3A 8

‘1@ ‘s196pnq ‘sfesodold 1oy sBumeIp BWaYOS/EUIRNO - INIHOS ¥
SNLVLS DNIMVHA

31IS NO @3X03HD 38 OL SNOISNIWIA TV
"ONIMVHA SIHL 37vOS LON Od

a4 0l LIVl
‘NoY ‘oN Bumeig ‘0N 108l0id

53 PToC TSnony €V ® 001

Ag umeig aleqg a[eog|

NV1d HOO14 ANNOYO a3sOd0dd

o bumelq

HN9 #IN NOANOT ‘AVMAVYIN 89 'ON
OL NOISN31X3 "Hv3d ® 3dIS
AIHOLS OML 1HVYd ‘FT1ONIS LHVd

yaloid

JojoB]UOD UlR

70d SHIN ® 1IN

Jualg|

Page 64

snoopeelb@b 3 6990 9888 020 4 00+S 9888 020 L

“PANIWIO ¥IOM3OO0|q Palepual g eae

Buiuip/usyopy 0} uwnjo) "papuswe sadid Jusan [10S B Siepnb

9 18)em UIEJ pue JNOAB| Usyomy ‘LM 8 0ZM SMOPUIM ‘+

® €0 ‘L2q Joop ‘sjybi|joos ‘1eas 0} 100p oljed B SMOPUIA “PepPe

Jlem Bunsixa 0} UWN|OD WIWQSZX0SZ %S (71020 : LY -:UoISInay
‘papusWE UONEDO]| S,J8]I0q pue Sajou JYBIJoo. 3 Mopuim

‘6LQ ® 8L3 100Q "Pappe LgQ 100 ‘usaios paze|b o} papuswe
uayoy ® wool Buiall usemiaq |lep : B2 iy L' ) [gVY -uolsiney
‘pappe 6LM Mopuim Ag adid JUSA |9A8] MO "papusWE S8jou
SIielap [[em @ SIYBI0OI JapusY : B3 :¥L°0L'8Z ‘€Y -:UOISINaY
‘papuswe ue|d

Aempes|y 0/ "ou % gg@ Joop ‘UOISUSIXa 100J} punoly) "pappe
UoISUS)X8 MaU 8y} O} suolsuawiq : %S :G1°20°6} ‘Y -UOISInaY

“Ilem Buisixe OluI Pajily 3OMOLI] MEN

*suolepuaWWodal
siainjoejnuew o} paj[elsul e pajulol
pue adey ‘pabpa ladey aq 0} spieog

‘uolje|nsul AlIAed 00Z 1 |00MOS|
WIWQG Yum apis yoea 090|gpunos
001dAH HG wwg g} Jo siehe| om |

‘@oue)SISal ally Inoy Jjey

anaIyoe 0} [[e - pajulol pue ade] ‘pabpa
Jade) aq 0) spieog "epis yoes 0}
pieogieiseld Hg wws gL Jo Jake| suQ

V11 ‘20 ‘v1 suonenbey buipjing

0} s[eanal Ayned “isyserd ysiuly Ny
QNISIUL WwE 3 [EMPIEH sy L wnsdAn
ysiilg WWLL UM JOLSIU 5I0MY00|q
‘uolle|nsul joom3o0Y yum Ajned
N} Wwog ‘bunsixe yoyew o} ajiym

ysep a|jqqad yum [[em AJABD maN
sjoyuely Bunsixg

WbleH 6

0
JaquinN 617 Jooy
JaquINN MOPUIAL
JaquinN Joog

==

WM | 4O (MN) Bnjea-n

analyoe 0} pue Aalb aje|s ul Jeq Buizeb pue
sa|joud [eulalxa Yyum ‘Yybly wwgzoL pue
apm wwig9s ‘pabuly doy ‘paze|b ajgnop aq
0} Jejuis Jo Auedwo) jybijooy 8yl wouiy
MOPUIA\ JOOY UOIIBAIBSUOD "OU | MON :Z0H

M W/MY' |

Jo (Mn) anjea-n aAalyoe o} pue Aalb ajels

ul Jeq Buize|b pue sajiyoid jeusalxa yum
‘ybIy WWGgG pue spim wiwLgok ‘pabuly

doy ‘paze|b a|gnop aq 0} ‘g/L-HD "Joi ‘Jejuis
Jo Auedwo) 1yb1jjooy 8y Wolj SMOPUIA
JOOY UOBAIBSUOD SOU & MON :90H-E0H

MeW/M 0°L

1o (mn) anjea-n Buiasiyoe Buize|b sjgnop
sse|b Jes|o Bulues|D §|9S +x8)j9Y Yum pue
Buiddeo [eutaixe pue pueisdn pajeibalul
wnjuiwn(e payeod Jepmod Jelsahjod ajqeinp
816 eyels yum apim wwog L pue Buoj
wwpo0z 99 0} ‘fefiwis 10 (902086806 10
‘[81) SSE|D X8|}oy WO} suldjue]

J00Y 8uljwi|S s*ou g MeN ‘g0d-10d
:spybjyooy

| S—
e L 0

NV1d HOO7d ANNOHD a3s0dodd

‘ubisep pue [elerew
ul Bunsixe yoyew o} s|jio Mau ||y

‘leLierew
urjou Inq ‘Bupisixe Yoyew o} SHYM puE ¥oe|q
ul peze|b 8|qnop 8q 0} SMOPUIM MaU ||y

4H9 ¥ N ‘UopuoT ‘peoy asey) v9s8e SSMOPUIM
“100|4 18114 ‘3 %00Ig ‘aBEIA 80O SrebuINos odd Boﬁwmsc_ﬁm\ﬁwm
ubisa@ pue ainjosyyoly y19 i : ‘310N
sojsagse wniujnie
8q 0} punoy Bunsie ul Bouc;m
J1s|[Er0ads Aq cEME. o} m_gsowm\,wm__/_
OAdN oE(q Ut opoOsot 2 aym pajured
adid Jejem ures maN I a pooy Yiom300|q panowsai
J10j0BIX0 palepual 5 0] SeUSh
10} IO usep s|qded q ymc_q _xm
0L
18]l0g  peAoWal 8q 0} PeAOWaI 8q O} sojsaqse ! sojsaqse
Buisuspuod siomyoug  Ae|Inb wuols aq 0} punoy | 84 0} punoj | | —
MmaN Bunsixg Bunsix3 yi3sieeds Aq ”o>nﬁ v%m_g ul J1sieroads Aq 5 sousy
penowal aq 0} adid Jeyem | paysijowap aq o} Jaqui Mm@
B e e any Bunsix3 | ueimen  ebeseb bunsixd | | 3 quilt MEN
@ E (P st ;
BUIIINO J0OI MBN > H ) o Ll
- I YT )
penowsal aq o} ved . : plINE \
epb bunsixg———————— = O L
ayym pajured Joop TEN
abeseb [ejow moaN : - v Q O i 11 nw\m,%_ﬁm__.mmom
panowel aq o} adid ! Y Q - O Bunsix3
Jeyem ures Bunsixg I zem _ ' - @ 9 | panowal aq 0}
| 1
| 692) H adid Jeyem ures
| = O 5 Bunsix3
|
M DJAdN Xoe|q ur adid . wooy BuiAr m W61 joos maN
wdv JUBA B [I0S MBN 80 ! uayouy B Bupsixe yoyew nm
- alIyM pejure
= av i AL IOMX00|q palspual v
! uapJien Jes)
= ! O . 7 . usep sjdqed PieD 125y
uapien juoig ! = EEE
m = mqw&mﬂ I i :&om winiuiwin[e ur 100p
! 02 i T | oned paze|b
aulno i a|gnop meN
Jo01 Bul ]
| @ £
! / LN 1 &
7N ol @ . LY : —Av
oL w2< m:_:_n w
| urews) o} Wwwooog
99 cw‘r__owc%w paAowsal 8q 0} Bunsixe zEme om sousy /
allym pajure: Jaquury ma)
OAdn OAdn I[em o} poob _wpw__mowo_ 1sea1q Aouwiyo 3I0M¥00|q paiapual OAdN oe|q ut AU MEN
oe|q ur adid yoejq uiedid  exew g adid Sx3 ysep ajqged = edid Je1em ures me <
12eM Urel 191eM Ulel JUaA 3 [0S s100p sse|b BuIpls yum ' '
Bunsixgy Bunsixg anoway uoelos paze|b maN 1y61| Joos meN



EmE&oO@

$3S0dHNd NOILONYLSNOO
HO4 @3sn 38 OL SONIMYHA . SNLVLS AINO

UOONISUOD 1O} UoKINLISUI
J1epun penssi sbumelp padojenap Ajind - NOILONYLSNOD 9

‘siopus) ‘s[enoidde
o4 mm:_\sﬁ‘_u ubisep euy buinoA3 - INIWOTIAIA NDIS3A 8

‘1@ ‘s196pnq ‘sfesodold 1oy sBumeIp BWaYOS/EUIRNO - INIHOS ¥
SNLVLS DNIMVHA

31IS NO @3X03HD 38 OL SNOISNIWIA TV
"ONIMVHA SIHL 37vOS LON Od| ut

b4 L Lyl
Aoy ‘oN Bumeig ‘ON 10901

[oE] PToC TSnony €V ® 001

Ag umeig aleqg a[eog|

NV1d HOOT4 1SHI4 a3sOd0dd

o bumelq

HN9 ¥EN NOANO1 ‘AVYMAVIN 89 'ON
OL NOISN31X3 "Hv3d ® 3dIS
AIHOLS OML 1HVYd ‘FT1ONIS LHVd

[0,
100/0'd ysep o|qged yum |lem Ajned meN
blay Bulien ,o\omw
lojoenuo) urey
Jaquinu b jooy Lod
Jaguinu MOpPUIN 9ZM
ITOd SHIN 8 HIA soqunu 1000 110
uai9)
n-0opeelB®b 3 6990 9888 020 4 004G 9888 020 L A 1
4HO ¥ LN ‘UOPUOT ‘PEOY 85BUD V982 e - 0
‘10014 18414 ‘3 oolg ‘ebe|iiA eo1O arebyino:
14181 3040008 SPEIIN 20O SIEBINOS NV1d HOOTd LSHI4 3SOdOHd
uBisa@ pue ainjoayaly y1o
OAdN
panowal aq 0} SoB[q Ul
0 adid uen % |i0s adid uerem
© Bunsixg  uey Jojoelx3 ures meN
(O]
(@) Bunsixe /
I 0L uyorew o sejy Aep NYS paxiy wnjuiwnie ui any} Jojlog wwoog!L - -
Ul UOISUB)Xa apIs mopuim paze|f ajgnop nys paxiy wnjujwne ui N\ >
(o 100y punoib sse|b a1nosgo meN wniuiwnfe Ui Mopuim MOopuIm Ilem S DAdN %0€|q Ul
MU JBAO 6 paze|b s|gnop paze|b ajgnop Q. jodesed maN 3 slepnb pue
B joos payoyd maN uey Lo“omw_“_v_um sse|b 81nosqo maN  |9A8] ybiy maN @ 3 adid Jeyem
- — — ures meN
OAdn oe(q Ul k — /\ — _
siannB g sadid - — T i L moﬂmmawm
Jajem urel maN od ou A/ od / 5q 0
#:m M ——— 4 er— m } pUNo.
— T v ﬂ _ o 5 ~mn ome \&
- paysijowsp aq
J Towepe;  peremolf| (<E J EEM I 0} ebeien)
Jaquill Ul MOpuUIM A\
umNmn_Mm M_DJOU w,w.z © woolieg AMU @ @
| ¢ 620 87
panowsal aq o} adid | o 3 CoCe) . alfl Teuns-uz A ou s|qnop meN
= Jorem ures Bunsixg ! L) e} panowsal 8q 0}
m I : adid Jeyem ures
> I YEM Bunsixg
M | OAdn = - 1yb1| J001 Ma|
> I oelq uy edid € wooupeg ybIr « N
=< 89 ! JUBA g [I0S MBN : -
b S uoIsuaIxe
lszm @ umop 20 [ ooy punoib
q Q| ! = & Mau anoqe
Bunsixe yorew o} . WOOIDS: La Aqqon jool jej4
18quUI} Ul SMOPUIM ] — pog wa i
! cia
pozelb Siqnop moN | ¢t wwoole’| “Jejiwis Jo wasAs Bulyool
3 BIIMIY JO 01U} WWZ 2
” Lam @ sem M Hod /| IRy = sueIquiaw oliswAlod
| 552) 2 wooipag 3 Ald 8|Buls painojoo
aulno Jool | - st : - Ael1b oq 0) sjedesed
bunsix3g ] . ¥ wooipag Mmau g s|lem Bunsixe
VA - 9ZM : 0} sBuiysel} pue Joos maN
= : WBI| 001 Mo
) -
99 OAdN  OAdN >0e|q Ul
soejq uredid  ueynb g adid 1001 tel)
Jajem ures Jajem urel
Bunsixe yoyew o} Bunsix3 Bunsixg ojuo Buibreyosip OAdN %oB|q Ul
aym g xoe|q pajured mopuim paze|b 5 OAdN >oe|q ut siepnb pue
2]qnop palLel) JaguI} Mau [[BISUl § SMOPUIM IEM 0} pOO mopuim paze|d adid Jajem Iem adid Jajem
apeoe) yojew o) Buiuado paiamol Joou M_m:\mw_m ov_mﬁ>ﬂ om_vm 9|anop MaN ures meN  jedered meN urel meN
PUE UipIM BWIES 81810 3 MOPUIM BAOWSY um__h._wm_x_m_ b m>%E_.mI

‘papuswe ggg

100p g INOAB|  PUE g WOOIPa] ‘WOOIUIE] ‘S}INS-Ud S,€ WOooIpaq

‘a)INs-ua s, Wooipad ‘2oy B LOY Siubijoos ‘smopuim mau

g Bunsixe ‘uoneAs|e apis B 1UOJ 0} sieNNb B sadid Jejem urel
‘J001 payold s,UoISUBIXa 8pIS 100 PUNOID "DAJN O} papusLE
s1onNnb B sodid Jelem ules Jeay : XS iy L0} 'E0 : LY -iUOISIneY
‘peppe anj} Jajiog "papuswe

sajou 1yBI|jo0s B MOPUIM : B8 1L°01 L gV -UoIsiAaY

‘pappe 810U 9ZM MOPUIA "PapUsE

sejou s|ielep [[em 3 SIybIooY : Be 1y 10182 (€Y -uoisiney
‘papusuwe

ed Aempealy 0/ "OU @ UOISUBIXS I0Oj 1S1l} PUE PUNOID “Pappe
UOISUSIXe M3U 8U} O} SUOISUBWIQ : %S (G206 HV ~UOISIASY

Jeyserd ysiuy BN OPSIYL wwg 8
IleMpPIeH apsiyL wnsdAD yshug wuwl |

“Ilem BUBSIXe Ojul Pailly HOMNOUQ MON

*SUOIEPUBLULIODSI
slainjoejnuew o} pajelsul |je pajulof
pue ade} ‘pabpa Jadey aq 0} spieog

‘uone[nsul AJAed 00g|L |00MOS|
wwQg YIm apis yoes 20|gpunos
00IdAD HG WWG'Z| Jo siahe] om]

"aoue)sISal ally inoy Jey

anslyoe 0} ||e - pajulof pue ade} ‘pabpe
Jade)] aq 0} spieog "apis Yyoes 0}
pleoquaise|d Hg wwggL Jo Joke| suQ

"Y1 20 ‘v1 suonenbey bul

0} sjeanal Ayae) “eyseld ysiu
SIISIUL WWE B |[BMPIeH 8psiy) wnsdAn
USIiug WW L UUm JOLSIUI YI0M00|q
‘uone[nsul [0oMxo0Y Uim Alines

Ity [N} WWOS ‘BUNSIXS Yorew O} SlIym
pajured I0LBIXa $I0MO0|q palepual

MeWMP | JO (MN) enjea-n

analyoe 0} pue Aaib eye|s ul Jeq buize|b pue
sa|iyoid [eulsixa yum ‘ybly wwgzo | pue
apIm wwgeg ‘pabuly doy ‘peze|b sjgnop aq
0} Jejiwis Jo Auedwo) ybijjooy oy wouy
MOPUIA\ JOOY UOIBAIBSUOD "OU | MaN :20H

HeW/MY' L

Jo (MN) @nfeA-n analyoe 0} pue Aaib ajels

ul Jeq Buize|b pue sejyoid [eulexe yum
‘YblY WWSZS pue opim wwzoL ‘pabuly
doy ‘pezelb s|qnop &q o} ‘g/L-HO ‘Jol “Jejiwis
10 Auedwo) 1yBijj0oY 8y WOl SMOPUIA
JOOY UOIBAISSUOD S'OU  MON :90H-E0H

HeW/M 0L

jJo (mn) enjea-n Buinaiyoe Buize|b ajgnop
sse|b Jes|o buluBa|D J|og +XaljeY YiIM pue
Buiddeo [eussxe pue puejsdn pajeibajul
n[e pajeoo lapmod Jaysahjod ajqeinp
‘kaib ayels UHIM SpIM WWOOg | pue Buo|
wwpooz @9 o} ‘fejiwis 1o (90208680610
'|8y) Sse| xa|jey Wolj Sulsjue]

ooy auljull|s s'ou g meN g0d-1oY
:spybjyooy

‘ublsep pue [elieyew
Ul Bunsixa yoyew 0} S||10 mau ||y

wn

‘leuayew

urjou Ing ‘Bunsixe yorew o} SHYM pue 3oe|q
ur paze|b 8|qnop &g 0} SMOpUIM MaU ||y
iSMOPUIM

‘310N

A



S3S0ddNd NOILONY1SNOD
HO4 d3sN 38 OL SONIMYHA D SNLYLS AINO

“UOIONIISUOD 10§ UoRONISUL
Jepun panss| sbumesp pedojensp AN - NOILONYLSNOD 9

‘o8 Buiq ‘siepua) ‘sjenoidde
4oy sBumesp ubisap [euly BunoAT - ININJOTIAIA NDIS3A &
916 'sjeBpnq ‘sjesodoid 1o} SBUIMEIP BWAYOS/BUNNG - INTHOS ¥
SNLVLS DNIMVHA
WAoo (3) 31IS NO G3X403HO 38 OL SNOISNIWIQ TV
"ONIMYHA SIHL 3TvOS LON 0

-y ) v
noy ‘oN Buimelqg ‘ON 108/01d

RE] ¥10g 1snbny €V ® 001}
Ag umelq’ aleqg 9leag|

NV1d 31IS ONILSIX3

a1l bumelq

HN9 ¥IN NOANOT ‘AVMAVYIN 89 'ON
OL NOISN31X3 Hv3d *® 3dIS
A3HOLS OML 1dvd JTONIS LHVYd

108loig

10}0BAUOD UB

I70d SHIN ¥ HIN

00G:} 37VOS
NV7d 3LIS ONILSIX3

uaid

Page 66

n'oopeeb@6 3 6990 9888 020 4 001G 9888 020 L
4H9 ¥ LN ‘uopuoT ‘peoy asey) v98e
10014 18114 3 %00ig ‘aBelliA 80O SeBuINOs
uBise@ pue ainjPaNYoIY V19

D

N\




Page 67

|

P

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 28" April 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Ms Eloise Kiernan 020 8379 3830

Ward:
Cockfosters

Ref: 15/00588/HOU

Category: Householder

LOCATION: 73 Avenue Road, London, N14 4DD,

PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension and part single, part single, part 2 storey rear extension involving

rear conservatory.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Daniel Pearce

73 Avenue Road

Southgate

Enfield

N14 4DD

United Kingdom

40 Blake Road
London
London

N11 2AE

Agent Name & Address:
Mr lan Eggleton

RECOMMENDATION:

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be REFUSED for reasons.

Note for Members:

Whilst this is an application that would normally be dealt with under delegated authority, the
application is being reported to Planning Committee as the applicant is Cllr Daniel Pearce.




Page 68

Ref: 15/00588/HOU LOCATION: 73 Avenue Road, London, N14 4DD,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENFg:ELDI Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
Qunci,




11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.4

2.5

3.1

4.1

41.1

Page 69

Site and Surroundings

The application site is situated on the north western side of Avenue Road on
a rectangular shaped plot. The property comprises the end terrace of a
terrace of four properties, of traditional brick construction with a hipped roof.

The surrounding area is residential in character and contains a number of
flatted developments and dwellings of a varying design, age and character.

The site is not listed and does not fall within a Conservation Area
Proposal

The proposal is for full planning permission for the construction of a two
storey side extension and part single/part two storey rear extension involving
a rear conservatory.

The two storey side/rear extension would have dimensions of 1.2m in width
from the front elevation extending to a maximum of 4.5m towards the rear
section by 8.2m in depth (approximately 3.8m beyond the existing rear wall),
to serve an enlarged hallway and dining area at ground floor level and
bedrooms and bathroom at first floor level. The extension would be finished
with a flat roof and be clad in timber.

The single storey element of the rear extension would project an additional
1m beyond the existing extension across the width of the property and flush
with the existing rear projection at the attached property, no 71.

This application differs from a previously refused scheme as follows:

The design and size of windows to serve the double storey side extension
have been altered

The roof design to the double storey side extension has been altered from a
shallow pitch to a flat roofline

Relevant Planning Decisions

14/03616/HOU — Two storey side extension and rear conservatory — refused
for the following reason:

The proposed two-storey side extension, by virtue of its scale, proportions
and appearance would result in an incongruous form of development
detrimental to the existing character and appearance of the dwellinghouse
and the visual amenities of the streetscene, contrary to Policies (II) GD3 and
(1) H12 of the Unitary Development Plan, CP30 of the Core Strategy, 7.4 of
the London Plan and DMD14 and DMD37 of the Submission Version
Development Management Document.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

None



4.2

421

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

Page 70

Public response

Letters were sent to 14 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition a notice
has been displayed on site. One response has been received, which raises
the following concerns:

Loss of privacy

Noise disturbance

Out of keeping with character of area — materials do not relate to the row of
terraces

Not enough detail provided on application

Relevant Policy

London Plan

7.4 Local character
7.6 Architecture

Core Strategy
CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment

Development Management Document

DMD6 Residential character

DMD11 Rear extensions

DMD13 Roof extensions

DMD14 Side extensions

DMD 37 Achieving High Quality and Design Led Development

Other relevant policy

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practise Guidance

Analysis

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

The proposed side extension would feature a flat roof, stepped back from the
front elevation by approximately 5m (including bay window) and the flat
roofline is level with the existing eaves height of the parent dwelling.

It is considered that the side extension, through its design, scale and
proposed finishing materials would introduce an incongruous and
disproportionate addition to the property and would have an awkward
relationship with the parent dwelling. It is considered that the flat roof form
would awkwardly relate to the original characteristics of the building and the
wider terrace of which it forms a part. It is noted that other properties have
extensions; however the proposed extension, as a consequence of its design
and scale would detract from the overall character and appearance of the
existing dwelling.



6.1.3

6.1.4

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.3

6.2.4

Page 71

The proposed flat roof would be to the side of the building and thus would be
visible within the Avenue Road street scene. The rear section of the extension
would also be visible from Berkeley Court . The existing property forms part of
a modest terrace of properties of traditional design, which whilst having been
extended to the rear over the years, are still relatively small in scale in
comparison to the original dwellings. The proposed extension would
significantly increase the scale of extension to the property and the bulk of the
flat roof two storey element to the rear. It is considered that this, taken with
the design approach proposed, accentuates its impact on the existing
dwelling and the wider area. It is therefore considered that the proposed
extension would fail to relate appropriately to the character and appearance
of the existing dwelling and visual amenities of the area, contrary to policies
CP30 of the Core Strategy, 7.4 of the London Plan and Policies DMD11 and
14 of the Development Management Document.

Policy DMD14 also requires that there is a setback of 1m from the common
boundary to maintain an adequate separation between dwellings within the
street scene and avoid a terracing effect. The floor plans indicate that the two
storey side extension would provide a separation of 1m from the common
boundary and therefore the development would comply with this element of
the policy.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The neighbouring properties most impacted on would be the adjoining
terrace, no.71 and the adjacent flatted development at Oakwood Lodge.

Oakwood Lodge (1-4) projects substantially further to the rear of the existing
dwelling and the proposed two storey element would be flush with this
projection, thus a 30 degree line would be maintained from the nearest
habitable window.

No 71 Avenue Road, immediately adjoins the site to the south. There is an
window within the rear elevation of an existing flat roofed two storey rear
projection at this property which serves a bathroom. A 30 degree line would
be breached in relation to this window. However given that it serves a non-
habitable room, on balance this relationship is considered acceptable. It is
therefore considered that the extension would not be detrimental to
neighbouring occupiers in regards to loss of sunlight/daylight or outlook,
having regard to policy DMD11 of the DMD.

There are windows proposed at ground and first floor level in the flank
elevation of the extension, facing Oakwood Lodge. At ground floor these
serve a kitchen/dining area and would face the largely blank flank elevation of
Oakwood Lodge. A condition could be imposed requiring the provision of a
means of enclosure to a minimum height of 1.8m to the common boundary to
ensure privacy is adequately maintained, were planning permission to be
granted. The window at first floor level would serve a bathroom and therefore
were permission to be granted a condition could be imposed requiring that
this be obscure glazed.

The two storey extension would bring built development nearer to the flank
elevation of Oakwood Lodge. However given the separation of approximately
2m, and as the windows in the flank elevation of this block serve non-



6.2.5

6.2.6

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Page 72

habitable rooms, it is not considered that this element of the proposal would
give rise to unacceptable loss of sunlight/daylight or outlook.

DMD11 of the Development Management Documents seek to secure a
common alignment of extensions. The ground floor rear extension would be
in common alignment with an existing projection at no. 71 and therefore the
proposed extension would have no undue impact on light or outlook to
No.71’s ground floor windows.

The single storey element would project approximately 1m beyond the
existing rear wall of Oakwood Lodge. Given this minimal projection and the
separation of 2 metres from the common boundary, a 45 degree line would be
maintained from the nearest habitable window and therefore the extension
would not be detrimental to neighbouring amenities in regards to loss of
sunlight, daylight or outlook, having regard to policies CP30 of the Core
Strategy and DMD11 of the DMD.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2015.

The development is not liable for CIL.

7. Conclusion

7.1

The proposed two-storey side extension, by virtue of its design, scale,
proportions and appearance would result in an incongruous form of
development, detrimental to the existing character and appearance of the
dwellinghouse and the visual amenities of the streetscene. The proposal is
thereby contrary to Policies CP30 of the Core Strategy, 7.4 of the London
Plan and DMD 11 and 14 of the Development Management Document.

8. Recommendation

8.1

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be refused for the
following reason:

The proposed two-storey side extension, by virtue of its design, scale,
proportions and appearance would result in an incongruous form of
development detrimental to the existing character and appearance of the
dwellinghouse and the visual amenities of the streetscene, contrary to
Policies CP30 of the Core Strategy, 7.4 of the London Plan and Policies
DMD11 and 14 of the Development Management Document.



WoDaIneYyRI0BE MM M.
wosainpa

2IN}09HYDID @@
R o9l s

2L Sv8 0204

(buipiing burnogybieu Ag peanosqgo Ajpipipd) NOILYAINI 3dAIS d3S0d0Yd

POYSOP UMOYS G/"OU JO BulINo

v10Z ke @1eqa €V@00L1 3leds
q 70-900 ISqWINN DUIMEIJ
suonens|3 pesodold  aWeN buimelq
EREEENEINEN] IVElTTe)
aav yLN uopuo Uonesn |
PEOY SNUAAY €/ 108[01d

Buljjapoway pue uoisua)x3
Buluue|q snjejs bumelqg

Uonanoseq  o1ed Ay
JUBWIWOO 10} BNSSI ISild 1G9l -
SJUSLULLOD SJUBIID SE JESI PUE BPIS 0} PApUSIXT ¥1'9G
“SuBWIWOo Buiuuelg-01d v Bumoljo) papuswy pigp g
“BUIUUE| 1O} PANSS| "SIUBLILIOD SJUBID SE SJUBWPUBWY $L'6'Z O
Buiuueld Joy panss| ‘bunesw Bujuueld Bumojioy papuswy G1'Z'ZL 4

Page 73

“Ajelo Joj PSRILIO SINJONIS “[1E1ep BUIppElo USE] PUE PIECT BAEDIPU|

“asnoy Bupsixe yojew o} sejyoud awely
“Ysiul [BANEU “POWEL-1BGUIT) UOISUSIXS O} SIO0P [EUIBIXS PUE SMOPUIM (1Y
“ysiuy 8)YM ‘pawelj-iequi yim paoerdel aq o) asnoy Bunsixe 0} SMOpUIM

Buyoos wess Buipueis ‘g

Japuai painojoo Aaib-ajels

Buiddes yose ‘g

(moaq 88s) Youe| ‘BuIppefo UsHEq-Uo-pIE0q [EOIMBA 2
abpa Joou suysp 0} Jaynb ouiz pajyoud asenbg *|

‘SIVIEILYN

|

Poinosd0

NOILVATTI dv3Id d3S0d0dd

N

SV L8N0Q NI 41

soInpaups pue suo

Bumesp sy
peai 5q pnous pue i

1E3P pUR SuOISUBLID ‘SZIS.
Y

ipur 812 sjuLa}o 1Sfe9a0s 18410 10 €MD

Stiom.

'ATNO SNOISNIWIQ 034NO14 3SN *ONIMVAA SIHL 319D LON 00

U

NOILYAZT3 LNOd4 d3S0d0dd

[ —]

[ —




Qav yIN uopuoT UoNEso|
PeOY dnuaAY €/ 108[01q

Buljjspoway pue uoisusixy
Buluue|g snje)s bumelq

T a_oreq Aoy
JUBWILIOD 10} BNSSI IS PL'GOL -
“SJUBWILIOO $)UBIIO SE JEBI PUE BPIS 0} PAPUSIXT 119G Y
SJusWWOo BuiuE|d-e1d v BUIMOllo} popuswy pl'g @
“BUILUE| 10§ PONSS| “SIUBWILLOD JUSIID SE PAPUSIX® 00| 1SI4 PL-6Zh O . ez o0y punoss,
Buiuued Joy panss| ‘Bunesw Buiuueld Buimolioy pepuswy G122l a4 sulj U Q:umtum,ms
Supniou)
uoisua}xa ooy

o \. 2IN}O8HY2ID @@@
vioz Ren 91eq BN EEESS saljaw
q o G0-900 JoqUINN DUIMEIQ 3 Z FI - Io
sue|d pesodold  aWeN buimelq
90Jead [alueq juald NV1d 4004 d3S0d0dd NV1d J0074 1Sdl4 d3S0d0dd Z/j& J00T14 ANNOYO d3ISOd0dd

Page 74

Va Va Va Va
' Yz Y4 ' Va ya , £101DAIBSUOD
eloms f ] o amy VEISteRTRY] O O I
Z wooupag
, — 5 /| ] A 5 L
p,dno,
.08 u .muw,a‘wszwﬁnh ]
, Buluig B
3 1
—
woolyipg
, — w7 ( won) , :HQ ﬁg C
=4
8
5 6uz0/6 (931 ~461H o m ol =] l....H....u I
o| oMY - o dMy
lﬂosx ' . _L
i

High
witdow

(wooipag . m ¢ woolpdg R S—_—
a LL'ON) A e A N )
o|Oo @ @D o puo usslq
1o0duios 910
o|o =—1
Lojstung on uedo
b ot cootoy

Obscured/
Stained Glass

| wooipag

, @

SV L8O NI 41

Inpo » 5q.0}'5) Gumesp sy L.

SAIEoIPUI B1e SluBWEP ISiEeds Jouo

'ATNO SNOISN3WIQ 034N914 38N "ONIMVAA SIHL 3190 LON 00




2IN}84ILYDID @ @ fa

2zeL Sv8 0204

vi0z Aen @1ed BUCIFEEEES

7 e ¥0-900

TBqunN bUmeIq

UE|d UOned0]  aWeN buimelq

8dJead |alueq JUVETT e}

aav LN uopuoT uoneooT]

PEOY SNUBAY £/ 108loig
Buljjepoway pue uoisuaix3

Buiuue|q snjejs bumelq

q_or’ea ney

‘Buiuueld-eid 10y anss1ISIy 1199 -
‘Buluueld Joy panss| ¥L'6ZL ¥V

Page 75

sauran
0s oy e 02 (U3 0 01
g a o o 8
3 2 g 2 8
® 8 b 2 g
00'9¥6¥61 009v6vel
0S6¥61 0S6¥61
2un03
000S61 ﬁ“ﬁ 000S61
050561 W 050561
00'960S61 " 00'960S61
2 o o @ 3
2 2 g g 2
Il o 0 2 N
3 ] 8 g 3

ISV L8N0A NI 31

sampaos

q 015 Bumesp sy
Joi s q pInoys pue Ajuo.
SiEiop pu SuoisuaLIp ‘SozIS
o Py

‘aAEoIpUl 218 SjUBWYa 1S1E10RdS JOUIO 10 [EOHARIR TEIUELD
Stiom.

'ATNO SNOISNANIO G34NOI4 3SN ‘ONIMVAA SIHL FTY0S LON 00




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

Agenda Item 10

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 28" April 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:

Ward:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Bush Hill Park

Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Ray Reilly 020 8379 5237

Ref: 15/01218/RE4

Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: Firs Farm Playing Fields, Firs Lane, London, N21 2PJ

PROPOSAL.: Creation of a wetland area (approximately 4,000 sg.m.) to the north of existing
sports pitches involving restoration of culverted watercourse, Moore Brook, excavation and
landscaping and creation of footpaths and cycle ways.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr lan Russell

Civic Centre

Silver Street

Enfield

London

EN1 3XA

Agent
Enfield

Enfield

Name & Address:
Council

Civic Centre
Silver Street

London
EN1 3XA

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.




Page 78

Firs Farm Playing Fields

North

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

o

Ref: 15/01218/RE4 LOCATION: Firs Farm Playing Fields, Firs Lane, London, N21 2PJ

S e L
I e ﬁ ﬁw

= e 2 .'. l.#
...’.i_"#..i .Mr._...un._ ". Y1 -_

Council

ENFIELD




1.0

11

1.2

13

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Page 79

Site and Surroundings

Firs Farm Playing Fields is a public park situated within the Bush Hill Park
Ward. It is a relatively large park that is bound by the residential houses on
Hyde Park Avenue to the north, Edmonton Cemetery to the north east, the
A10 to the east, residential streets to the south and Firs Lane to the west

The section of the park subject to the planning application totals
approximately 4,000 sgqm. The area is a predominantly flat grassed area to
the north end of the park, south of Hyde Park Avenue and situated in between
Firs Lane and Edmonton Cemetery.

The site is situated is designated as Metropolitan Open Land and is adjacent
to a small wooded section of the park designated as a site of Local
Importance for Nature Conservation.

Proposal

The application proposes engineering works in order to create a multi-
functioning wetland area. This wetland is proposed to introduce a water
feature to the park to enhance the visual amenity of the area and re-invigorate
a part of the park that is currently underused. It is also proposed to re-
introduce a culverted watercourse- Moore Brook.

The proposals involve the excavation of part of the park, approximately 110m
by 65m. It is proposed to excavate to a depth of 2.3m. The soil from this
excavation would then be re-positioned to the immediate west of the wetland
ponds where a new raised landscaped area is to be created with sloping
gradients 1.4m above existing ground level.

The proposed wetland itself would be broken into 3 separate cells 1200m2,
800m2 and 1500m2 respectively. There would be new pathways created
between each cell in Breedon gravel that would link into new paths created in
easterly and westerly directions away from the park.

The applicant advises that the scheme will deliver multiple benefits:

e Enhanced amenity features including improved access for all users
through the creation of a network of foopaths/cycleways.

e Increased biodiversity by creating habitat for a variety of wildlife.

e Improve water quality through the creation of wetland treatment cells
(Moore Brook flows towards Pymmes Park Lane further downstream)

¢ Reduced flood risk through the storage of water following extreme rainfall.

Relevant Planning Decisions

There are no known relevant planning decisions relating to this section of Firs
Farm Playing Fields.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees



41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

41.4

4.2

421

Page 80

Environmental Health

No objection raised. This is because there would be no negative
environmental impact in regards to human health. In particular there are no
concerns regarding air quality, noise, or contaminated land.

Environment Agency

No objection raised. An informative has been suggested to advise:

The proposed wetland site is located within a Source Protection Zone 1
(SPZ1). The public water supply abstraction is from the Chalk aquifer
which is overlain by sufficient thickness of London Clay and therefore
should be adequately protected from the surface activities (unless there
are preferential pathways such as borehole soakaways or
periglacial/scour features present or introduced).

With regards to excavated materials and waste, it is confirmed that
material arising from a development is not waste as long as it is used on
the site of production and is suitable for that use without processing and
treatment. A waste exemption would not be needed if this is the case. The
applicant/contractors have a duty to follow the CLAIRE Code of Practice.
The Moore Brook is an ordinary watercourse and therefore the responsibility
of the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Traffic and Transportation

No objection raised, subject to a construction method statement condition
being imposed.

Tree Officer

No objection. The Tree Officer has stated there are no objections raised
subject to conditions in relation to landscaping and tree protection.

Public response

Letters were sent to 42 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition 8 site
notices have been displayed outside the site. Three letters have been
received to date, 2 in support and 1 against the development. The comments
provided have been summarised below as follows:

Letter of Support:

The proposed wetland will improve the visual amenity and attractiveness of
an area of the park that is very underutilised.

Letters of Objection:
Too much interference with the natural environment.

If it comes into being, trees would have to be kept low, as the view of the
fields would be obstructed from those local to them.



Page 81

o Wetlands would create stagnant and polluted water, which would be
unpleasant for walkers, runners cyclists and other users of the area.

5.0 Relevant Policy
5.1 London Plan

Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage

Policy 5.14  Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Policy 5.18 Construction, excavation and demolition waste
Policy 6.9 Cycling

Policy 6.10  Walking

Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature

5.2 Core Strategy

CP21 Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage
Infrastructure

CP28 Flooding

CP29 Flooding

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

CP34 Open space

CP36 Biodiversity

5.3 DMD
DMD 47 New roads, access and servicing
DMD 59 Avoiding and reducing flood risk
DMD 62 Flood control and mitigation measures
DMD63 Protection and improvement of water courses and flood defences
DMD 64 Pollution control
DMD 70 Water quality
DMD 71 Protection and enhancement of open space
DMD 78 to 81 Green Infrastructure

5.7 Other relevant policy/quidance

NPPF
NPPG

6.0 Analysis

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 Firs Farm Playing Fields is an open space on the boundary between
Edmonton and Winchmore Hill. The site is dominated by sports pitches (12
football and 1 rugby pitch); however, there are substantial areas around the
sports facilities that offer opportunities to create more natural open spaces. It
is proposed to re-landscape these areas to restore a culverted watercourse
(Moore Brook, which is ‘lost’ tributary of Pymmes Brook), create a wetlands
area, and enhance woodlands and grasslands. The area of wetlands to be
created is approximately 4,000m2.



6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.3.1

Page 82

It has been agreed with Enfield’s Parks Department, that the excavated
material to create the wetland is to be reused within Firs Farm Park, to create
a new landscaped area to the immediate west of the wetland area. This is an
area that has been identified as requiring improvement. This proposed
scheme, and the use of the excavated materials, form part of the strategic
improvements to Firs Farm Playing Fields.

Firs Farm playing fields is designated as Metropolitan Open Land. Policy
DMD 71 states that essential facilities that would support the enjoyment of,
and maintain the openness of open space will be acceptable subject to
certain criteria. Core Policy 34 states that the Council will protect and
enhance existing open space to improve the provision of good quality and
accessible open space. It is considered that the proposal achieves the
objectives of these planning policies, as discussed below.

The proposed wetland is to be situated on land that is currently grassed with
trees around its periphery. This area within the park has no playgrounds on
it, no pitches and no formal paths through it. Thus currently, it is an under -
utilised section of the park. However, the proposed wetland is to include
paths running through it in strategic locations, linking it to the wider park and
outlying area. It is therefore considered that the proposed development
would support the enjoyment of the park. Furthermore, it is considered that
the proposal would not compromise the openness of the park and existing
greenery will be enhanced through additional native planting within the
wetland area.

Overall, it is considered that the existing park would be enhanced by the
wetland as it would create a useable and multi-functioning area that is
currently under-utilised. The proposal would benefit the park and its users in
regards to recreational function and visual amenity, as well the environmental
and biodiversity enhancements it creates.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area and Landscaping

The wetland has been split into 3 different areas, annotated on the plan as
“cells”. These cells vary in width and depth. The proposed wet land will
reach a maximum width of 110m. The maximum depth of the wetland is 3m
from ground level.

The wetland would look in keeping with the park, which is characterised by
trees, grass and shrubs. It would look like a large landscaped area with
pedestrian footpaths through it promoting connectivity through the park. The
footpaths are to be surfaced in Breedon Gravel.

A condition is suggested requiring a landscaping plan to be submitted.
Although landscaping details have been submitted with the types of species
to be planted, their location has not been provided on a plan.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposal would not impact neighbouring residents in regards to outlook,
and privacy. Whilst the residential properties on Hyde Park Avenue and Firs
Lane are relatively close to the site, the nature of the proposals will not
impact upon those properties. There would be obvious disruption during the



6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 83

construction process, however the project should only take approximately 6-8
weeks to complete. The impact of construction works would be managed
through a construction method statement condition.

Highway Safety and Construction

Traffic and Transportation have raised no objection to the scheme, subject to
a condition relating to the submission of a construction method statement.
The construction method statement would need to provide details of access
and parking during construction.

Biodiversity

There are no ecological constraints to the proposed development. Whilst the
site is located near an area of the park designated as Local Nature
Conservation (wooded area to the west and south), it would not impact upon
these areas. Overall the scheme is encouraged from a biodiversity
perspective and will help to re-introduce new species to the area.

Trees

The Tree Officer has raised no objection to the proposal. The development
will seek to provide additional trees in the area surrounding the site which will
improve the appearance of the park as a whole. A condition has been
recommended that the scheme is carried in accordance with the tree
protection plan and arboriculture method statement.

Conclusion

The proposal seeks to introduce a wetland area into the park to improve the
appearance of the park, the visual amenity and attractiveness of this area
along with the restoration of an old watercourse- Moore Brook. This will also
bring an added biodiversity benefit which is to be welcomed. The proposal is
therefore supported.

Recommendation

That planning permission be subject to the following conditions:

C51A — Three year time limit

C60 Approved Plans

The use and development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule
which forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.

The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction
period. The Statement shall provide for:



Vi.
Vii.

viii

Page 84

the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

. construction access

iii. arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas

loading and unloading of plant and materials

storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
wheel washing facilities

measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from the construction
works

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of the development does not
prejudice highway safety or the free-flow of traffic on adjoining highways, and
to minimise disruption to neighbouring properties.

All areas of hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest which
are to be removed as part of the development, are to be cleared outside the
bird-nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-
nesting season cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist
will check the areas to be removed immediately prior to clearance and advise
whether nesting birds are present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation
clearance or other works that may disturb active nests shall proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely impacted by the proposed
development in accordance with national wildlife legislation and in line with
CP36 of the Core Strategy. Nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife
and Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended).

No works or development shall take place until full details of both hard and
soft landscape proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. Soft landscape details shall include:

* Planting plans

» Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated
with plant and grass establishment)

» Schedules of plants and trees, to include native, wildlife friendly species and
large canopy trees in appropriate locations (noting species, planting sizes and
proposed numbers / densities)

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity.

Retained Trees

In this condition a “retained tree” is an existing tree which is to be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars and any
recommendations therein; and paragraphs (a) and (b) below shall have effect
until the expiration of 5 years from the date of the (occupation of the



b)

Page 85

building/commencement of use of the approved development) for its
permitted use.

No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any
retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, stems or roots, other
than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. All tree works shall be
carried out in accordance with BS 3998:2010.

If any retained tree is cut down, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree
shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and
species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site
or in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the
development.

Tree Protection

The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the Arboriculture Method
Statement and Tree Protection plan submitted with the application.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site
or in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the
development.



3TV3S TANLYN  wugor 05 02 o o
| | | | | | | |

100-280397 | ON ONIMVdA

(5% ose:l
SLOZ ¥V ul ol
[1ouUNoD

ai13idNg

SNOILO3S ANV NVd

1L ONIMVHA

SANVILIM WYV sHld
301 gor

a73I4dN3 40
HONO¥Od NOANO1

AN3ND

ONINNV1d

SNLYLS

BT SIPjap UoisiNeY [Ady

Page 86

sinojuo) Bupsixy

sinouen pesodoig "
sjene] punoig Bupsixg 105

siara1 punosg pasodoid

pajuold og o) sail |
S
parowiay og oL 821

s ()

woonoos [~

ssous ousiopn [

soaio pasioy [ |

43043004 [8ADIB—punog _H_
L |

soom [

A3M

‘STIVI3Q ANV SNOILO3S H04
€00—£Z1367 "ON ONIMVYO OL ¥343y
"S3I¥3IS IAVS 3HL NI SONIMVHQ
Y3IHIO TIV HLM NOILONNPNOD

NI Qv3¥ 38 OL SI ONIMVY¥O SHL 'S

3SIMY3HLO Q310N
SSTINN TIATT WNLVA ONYNGYO OL
31134 ANV SIYIIN NI 34V ST3A3T TV 4

‘NMOHS 3SIMY3HIO SSIINN
STULIANMTIN NI 33V SNOISNIWIG TV €

“ONNO4 AT3LVIAINNI
NOLINILLY SY¥IINIONI 3HL OL LHONO¥E
38 OL SNOISSING dO SHO¥d3 ANV ‘T

'ONIMYYA SIHL WOM4 F1vOS 1ON 00 "L

S3ION

0077 3155
EREREES

AoMjom pasioy

0GL°T 33§
V-V uores

0£°02 W

7\ 0572

fomapha/yodioo) ap we

sanow gp xouddo Lpu
spuojjen pasodoig

an3] punosb Bugsix

U0 sy uowy JauBly Wi
0y dn posios vaiy

(5572
Jore] punosb uysix

09tz
aup) say




Page 87

Firs Farm Wetlands - Location Plan

J
e |

£

P AN

¥/f\J‘ T
HYDE PARK AVENUE

|
I T




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015
	4 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 MARCH 2015
	5 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO. 233)
	6 14-02634-FUL - 25 LANCASTER AVENUE, BARNET EN4 0EP
	7 15-00453-FUL - REAR OF 41-45 GORDON HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 0QS
	8 14-04772-HOU - 68 MEADWAY, N14 6NH
	9 15-00588-HOU - 73 AVENUE ROAD, LONDON, N14 4DD
	10 15-01218-RE4 - FIRS FARM PLAYING FIELDS, FIRS LANE, LONDON N21 2PJ

